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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AEMBEHME

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

AREREREMBFENEEREE &
ERFERESHR (RRACTBEZER

statements is set out below: ZEIHRR )T :
RESULTS £
THE GROUP AEE
For the year ended 3| December
BZNA3NALEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx TET TET TET TET
Turnover E 2] 155,823 82518 510793 907,473 806,713
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE),/ &7 (18,134) (52.118) (38,834) 12,883 92,706
(Loss)/profit attributable to: NTEIEER
(&518),/ A
Fquity holders of the Company AR AIEREE A (24,106) (48264) (40612) 13,117 93,050
Non-controlling interests RS 5972 (3854) 1,778 (234) (344)
(18,134) (52,118) (38834) 12,883 92,706
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE BREIFERER
As at 3| December
RI12A318
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET AT THT THET THT
Total assets nEE 655,818 452,446 247,123 429,087 438,964
Total liabilities wefE (75,875) (213817) (135,765) (369,542) (138826)
Net assets EERE 579,943 238,629 111358 59,545 300,138
Attributable to: AT &I E(G -
Equity holders of the Company ~ A REZEE A 449,706 227,040 109,247 57,320 298,869
Non-controlling interests FERER 130,237 11,589 2111 2225 1,269
579,943 238,629 111,358 59,545 300,138
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” and the “Directors”) of Beijing Sports
and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
2017 annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Annual
Report”), and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Sports and Entertainment Business

Since the promulgation of the Opinion on Accelerating the Development of the Sports
Industry and Promoting Sports Consumption (the “Document No. 46") by the State
Council of China in late 2014, the future development of sports industry in China has
become a national strategy. As stipulated in Document No. 46, by 2025, the total value of
China’s sports industry is targeted to reach RMBS5 trillion, with a population of as many as
500 million who regularly participate in sports. Provincial and municipal authorities in China
have issued their respective implementation regulations and policies to ensure the sports

industry to grow as rapidly as targeted in the Document No. 46 in the coming decade.

Moreover, other than further boosts for popular sports like running, fitness and football,
some niche segments which used to enjoy little market awareness were also on the rise
in 2016.As Beijing and Zhangjiakou won the bid to jointly host the 2022 Winter Olympics,
winter sports are gaining popularity and have found its way into the sporting life of Chinese
residents. According to “Development Plans for Winter Sports (2016-2025)"( (kZE
BB R H 2 (2016—2025%) ) ) published by the General Administration of Sport of
China, the domestic winter sports industry is targeted to reach a scale of RMB600 billion
by 2020, and RMBI trillion by 2025, which underlines the huge commercial potential
therein. However, relevant industries in the domestic scene are still in the early stage of
development and require further policy and capital support in order to reach its potential

and meet the target.

We believe our business which specializes in air domes, world-class real ice rack and the
ancillary facilities, is well positioned to benefit from the anticipated surge in interest in
winter sports. Looking ahead, the Group will continue our expansion strategy on sports
and entertainment business. Our high caliber team in different regions will keep analyzing
potential sites, acquisition targets and cooperation opportunities in the market. The Group
believes sports industry is promising in China as national policy support and the hosting of
large sports events like Beijing Winter Olympic Games in 2022 will drive the development

of related industries.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Logistics Business

During the year under review, the demand for air-cargo services continued to decrease
and such drop was in line with the slowdown in global market development, especially in
Europe and South America leading to the decrease in exports in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). The keen competition in the freight forwarding market and the
oversupply in air/sea cargo space also led to a drop in selling rate resulted in a reduction in

the Group's revenue during the year under review.

Despite the economic slowdown in Europe and South America markets leading to the
decrease in exports in China for the year under review, the global demand for logistics
and freight forwarding services and warehouse and logistics business, brought about by the
e-commerce business and the improvement in the United States and Europe’s business

environment, are expected to remain healthy in the medium to long term.
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the shareholders of

the Company (“Shareholder(s)") for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

In the opinion of the Director, the Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance

its operations in the coming twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The Company announced that the address of the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong had changed to Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, |11 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect on 3 January 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Discloseable Transaction in Relation to The Capital Injection into MetaSpace (Beijing) Air

Dome Corp.*

On 16 January 2017, the Company announced that Zhong Hu Sports Culture
Development (Beijing) Limited*, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
at the date of the transaction, entered into an agreement with MetaSpace (Beijing) Air
Dome Corp.* (the “Target Company”) in relation to the capital injection into the Target

Company (the “MetaSpace Agreement”).

The Target Company is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and is
listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations Company (“NEEQC", also known
as the “Third Board") in 2014.

Pursuant to the MetaSpace Agreement, the Company shall inject a sum of RMB 140 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$156.8 million) in cash into the Target Company by
subscription of new ordinary shares issued by the Target Company. Thereafter, the Target
Company will become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group; and will be

consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Since certain of the applicable percentage ratios of the MetaSpace Agreement exceed 5%
but are less than 25%, the MetaSpace Agreement constitutes a discloseable transaction for
the Company for the purposes of, and are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under, Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Listing Rules”).

The MetaSpace Agreement was subsequently completed on 18 April 2017.

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 17 January

2017 and 18 April 2017 for the details of the MetaSpace Agreement.

*  For identification purpose only

Acquisition of The Remaining 40% Shareholding of Zhong Hu Dingfeng

On 17 January 2017, Zhong Hu Sports Culture Development (Beijing) Limited® (“Zhong
Hu Sports”) and Beijing Dingfeng Ronghe Investment Management Limited* (“Beijing
Dingfeng") entered into a share transfer agreement pursuant to which Zhong Hu Sports
had agreed to purchase and Beijing Dingfeng had agreed to sell 40% shareholding interest
in Zhong Hu Dingfeng at the consideration of RMB2 million. Upon completion of the share
transfer agreement, Zhong Hu Dingfeng will become an indirect wholly owned subsidiary

of the Group.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, this acquisition contemplated under the share transfer
agreement is exempt from the requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules as all

applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 are below 5%.

The share transfer agreement was subsequently completed in February 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Discloseable and Connected Transaction in Relation to Termination of the Joint Venture
involving the Disposal of Joint Venture and the Joint Venture Subsidiary

On 7 April 2017, Zhong Hu Yuedong Culture Media (Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong Hu
Yuedong"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Beijing Zhongying
Shengjia Cinema Development Limited* (“Beijing Zhongying”) and Beijing Zhong Hu
Shengjia Culture Development Limited* (“Beijing Zhong Hu Shengjia") entered into the
share transfer agreement, pursuant to which Zhong Hu Yuedong has agreed to sell and
Beijing Zhongying has agreed to repurchase 65% shareholding interest in the Beijing Zhong
Hu Shengjia and Beijing Zhong Hu Tianjie Cinema Management Limited* (“Beijing Zhong
Hu Tianjie") (collectively, the “Disposed Companies”)at the consideration of RMBI3

million.

Further, on 7 April 2017, upon signing of the share transfer agreement, Beijing Zhong
Hu Shengjia executed the share pledge agreement in favour of Zhong Hu Yuedong,
pursuant to which Beijing Zhong Hu Shengjia shall pledge its 100% shareholding interest
in Beijing Zhong Hu Tianjie to Zhong Hu Yuedong to guarantee, among other things, the

performance of all obligations of Beijing Zhongying under the share transfer agreement.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios set out in the Listing Rules in respect
of the disposal exceed 5% but all of them are less than 25%, the disposal constitutes a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter |4 of the Listing

Rules.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Disposed Companies are owned as to 65% by the Company and as to 35% by Beijing
Zhongying, thus Beijing Zhongying is a substantial shareholder of the subsidiaries of the
Company under the Listing Rules and accordingly, a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level. Accordingly, the Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company. The Board of the Company (including the independent non-executive Directors)
has approved the disposal under the share transfer agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) have confirmed that the share transfer agreement has been made on normal
commercial terms, its terms are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. Pursuant to Rule [4A.101 of the Listing Rules, the
disposal contemplated under the share transfer agreement will constitute a connected
transaction only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, but exempt
from the circular; independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval requirements

under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

References should be made to the announcement of the Company dated 7 April 2017 for

the details of the share transfer agreement and the share pledge agreement.

*  for identification purpose only

Discloseable Transaction in Relation to Capital Injection into Zhonghu Haizhou
(Shenzhen) Business Equipment Co., Limited

On 22 June 2017, the Company announced that Beijing Sports Everwise Investments
Limited (“B) Sports Everwise"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement with the Zhonghu Haizhou (Shenzhen) Business Equipment
Co, Limited* (the “Zhonghu Haizhou") in relation to the capital injection into the

Zhonghu Haizhou (the “Zhonghu Agreement”).

Zhonghu Haizhou is a company incorporated on 9 June 2017 in the PRC with limited
liability and will be engaged in building world-class real ice rank, indoor ski and ancillary
facilities in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Pursuant to the Zhonghu Agreement, BJ Sports Everwise shall inject a sum of
RMB63,750,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$73,121,250) in cash into the Zhonghu
Haizhou. Thereafter, Zhonghu Haizhou will become an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group and will be consolidated in the consolidated financial statement of

the Group.

Since certain of the applicable percentage ratios of the Zhonghu Agreement exceed 5%
but are less than 25%, the Zhonghu Agreement constitutes a discloseable transaction for
the Company for the purposes of, and are subject to the reporting and announcement

requirements under, Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Reference should be made to the announcement of the Company dated 22 June 2017 for

the details of the Zhonghu Agreement.

*  For identification purpose only

Discloseable Transaction in Relation to The Disposal of a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
Together with Its Shareholder’s Loan

On 28 June 2017, the Company entered into the provisional agreement for sale and
purchase, pursuant to which the Company had agreed to sell to an independent third
party the entire issued share capital of the Lucky Outset Investments Limited (“Lucky
Outset"), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability together with the shareholder's Loan at the consideration
of HK$120,536,000 (the “Disposal”). The sole asset of the Lucky Outset is the 100%
equity interest in Nobletree Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Lucky Outset and
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which holds office premises
situate at Office Units [110-11, I1th Floor, Harbour Centre, No. 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. Upon completion, Lucky Outset will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company.

Since certain of the applicable percentage ratios of the Disposal exceed 5% but are less
than 25%, the Disposal constitutes a discloseable transaction for the Company for the
purposes of, and are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under,

Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Disposal was subsequently completed on 30 August 2017,

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 28 June 2017

and 30 August 2017 for the details of the Disposal.

Formation of a Subsidiary

On 28 October 2017, Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development (Beijing) Limited*
(“Zhong Hu Dingfeng”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with Jiangxi Luyang Sports Industry Development Co., Limited* (“Jiangxi
Luyang”) in respect of the formation of the company Jiangxi Zhonghu Luyang Sports
Industry Development Limited® (“Jiangxi Zhonghu") which is principally engaged in the
development and operation of air dome of sport stadium in the north of gandhi dyke
scenic spot with shengmi bridge to sanzhi logistics section basketball field, Nanchang, Jiangxi
Province LA B EMBRARENBERAANBE=EMRRENS AL SH)
for a total area of approximately 2,050 square meters. Under the agreement, the parties
agreed that, Jiangxi Zhonghu shall be established and shall be held as to 65% by Zhong
Hu Dingfeng and 35% by Jiangxi Luyang. Jiangxi Zhonghu shall have a registered capital of
RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,850,000), which shall be contributed
by Zhong Hu Dingfeng and Jiangxi Luyang as to RMB3,250,000 in cash (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,802,500) and RMBI,750,000 in cash (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,047,500), respectively.

Pursuant to the agreement, Jiangxi Zhonghu was established in the PRC on 18 December
2017.

*  for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Connected Transaction — Subscription for New Shares by a Connected Person

On 25 July 2017, the Company entered into the subscription agreement with Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (“BEMH") in relation to the
subscription of an aggregate of 122,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription price of
HK$1.88 per subscription share (the “Subscription”).

The gross proceeds of the Subscription will be HK$229.4 million. The net proceeds of the
Subscription, after the deduction of the related expenses, will be approximately HK$228.3
million, representing a net issue price of approximately HK$1.87 per subscription share.
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds of the Subscription for repayment of

Shareholder’s loan.

As BEMH is a substantial Shareholder interested in approximately 19.67% of the issued
share capital of the Company (“Share(s)") at the date of this interim report, it is a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription constitutes a connected
transaction on the part of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
is subject to, among others, the approval of the independent Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting. The Board believes that the Subscription would allow the
Group to strengthen the strategic relationship with BEMH from raising additional funds for
the Company.

The Subscription was completed on 30 November 2017. A total of 122,000,000
Subscription shares were allotted and issued to BEMH on 30 November 2017 with a net

proceeds of HK$228.3 million was received by the Company on the same date.

On early December 2017, the Company applied all the net proceeds from the
Subscription to repay the four Shareholder’s loans as set out in the section with heading

"Shareholder’s Loans and Repayment” on page |5 of this Annual Report.

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 25 July 2017, 31
August 2017 and 30 November 2017 for the details of the Subscription.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS AND REPAYMENT

During the year under review, the Company entered into the following Shareholder’s loan

agreements in the following terms and amounts: —

BEEENWR DN

BRERRE
REBEE AR ARTHERRLBTL
BRERBEDT : -

Loan Amount Interest rate
Date Lender (million) (per annum)
SR V] ExzH(BB) ERx
16 December 2016 Hollyview International Limited HK$175 3.0%
2016F12R 16H Hollyview International Limited 17578 7T 3.0%
I5 March 2017 W Capital Management Limited HK$20 4.8%
2017F3R15R W Capital Management Limited 2078 7T 4.8%
16 March 2017 Vision Finance Group Limited HK$20 4.8%
201753/ 16H EEEREEERAA 208 7T 4.8%
|7 March 2017 Vision Finance Active Investment Limited HK$48 4.8%
201743/ 17H Vision Finance Active Investment Limited 4878 7T 4.8%

The interest rate was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the parties
by reference to the then prevailing bank lending interest rate. These Shareholder's loans
will be due on the second anniversary if not paid earlier The lenders could request the

Company to pay the loan amount and accrued interest on demand.

As the lenders were the substantial Shareholders of the Company, these loans constituted
connected transactions in the form of financial assistance in favour of the Group. However,
as these loans were not secured by any assets of the Group, and were provided on
normal commercial terms, these loans were fully-exempted from Shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under the Chapter 4A of the Listing Rules

pursuant to Rule [4A.90.

These four Shareholder's loans were fully repaid in early December 2017 by the Company
to the lenders with the net proceeds received by the subscription of new shares by BEMH
as set out in the section with heading “Connected Transaction — Subscription of New

Shares by a Connected Person” on page |4 of this Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the investments in the sports and entertainment-related industry in the PRC; and the

provision of air freight services in the wholesale market.

During the vyear under review, the Group achieved approximately HK$156.8 million in
turnover, representing an increase of approximately 90% from that of approximately
HK$82.5 million during the same period of last year. Gross profit was approximately
HK$39.3 million comparing to the gross profit of approximately HK$8.6 million during
the corresponding period of last year The overall gross profit ratio increased from

approximately 10.4% to approximately 25.1%.

The improvements in both the turnover and gross profit of the Group during the
year under review was primarily due to the contribution from MetaSpace (Beijing) Air
Dome Corp*, a PRC company acquired by the Group on 18 April 2017 as set out the
section with heading “Discloseable Transaction in relation to the Capital Injection into

MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp” on page 8 of this report.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$24.1
million as compared to approximately HK$48.3 million in the year ended 31 December

2016. Basic loss per Share was approximately HK2.0 cents.

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately

HK$139.5 million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$306.4 million).

*  for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income and Gains
The Group recorded other income and gains, net of HK$74.1 million during the year,
compared to HK$15.9 million in 2016. The increase was mainly attributable to the gain

from disposal of subsidiaries during the year for HK$40.7 million as follows:

On 7 April 2017, the Group completed a disposal of 65% shareholding interest in the
Beijing Zhong Hu Shengjia Culture Development Limited* and Beijing Zhong Hu Tianjie
Cinema Management Limited* at the consideration of RMBI3 million and recorded a gain
on disposal of approximately HK$5.6 million. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Discloseable and Connected Transaction in Relation to Termination of the Joint Venture
involving of Joint Venture and the Joint Venture Subsidiary” on page 10 of this Annual

Report.

On 28 June 2017, the Group completed the disposal of its entire issued capital on Lucky
Outset Investments Limited (“Lucky Outset”) together with the shareholder’s Loan at
the consideration of HK$120,536,000. The sole asset of the Lucky Outset is the 100%
equity interest in Nobletree Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Lucky Outset and
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which holds office premises
situate at Office Units 110-11, I'1th Floor, Harbour Centre, No. 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The cash consideration of HK$120,536,000 was received by the
Group on 30 August 2017 and the Group recorded a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$33.4 million. For details, please refer to the section headed “Discloseable Transaction
in Relation to The Disposal of a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary Together with lIts
Shareholder’s Loan” on page |2 of this Annual Report.

On 20 November 2017, the Group completed a disposal of 74% of Beijing Zhonghu Zhilu
Cuttural Development Co,, Limited at the consideration of RMB7.4 million and recorded a

gain on disposal of approximately HK$2.0 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses for the year increased to HK$75.8 million, compared to last
year of HK$58.1 million. The increase was mainly due to the increase in related business

expansion in sports and entertainment business in the PRC during the year

Finance Costs
Finance costs mainly represented the interests on Shareholders’ loans payable to the

lenders during the year.

Investment Properties
Investment property represented a building located in Shanxi, the PRC which the Group
held to earn rental income during the year. The investment property was stated at fair

value.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Goodwill for HK$29.1 million is mainly generated from the capital injection of Metaspace

(Beijing) Air Dome Corp* completed on 18 April 2017.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The Group's net cash outflows from operating activities for the year under review
amounted to approximately HK$69.3 million (2016: approximately HK$21.5 million). As
at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$139.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$166.9 million as compared with the
position as at 31 December 2016. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents is mainly due
to the repayment of Shareholder’s loans but offset by the cash proceeds received from the

disposal of subsidiaries during the year under review.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group have Shareholder's loan of HK$NIl (as at 3|
December 201 6: approximately HK$175.2 million). The gearing ratio (which is calculated
by dividing total borrowings by total assets) was Nil% (31 December 2016: 38.7%). During
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, the Group did not hedge its exposure to

interest rate risk.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

1 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

TRR X
AERITHAXKEFNS I 5EETEN
EISSEEATL BNNEEARFATEE
B RREEBHEREB RS M-

BERA
BERATIREFARNET ZBRERM

B o
oy

RENE
REVFRURPELAN-ERT MF
AREEREZETRRESRA-REY
ERAREEIK-

BREEREE
HEVIBEB T EEHNE017F4H18
ARt RAEREZERMRHER A
AEEMES-

REBES MBEERREFBELE
REBEEE ARENEEEHRERLF
BRNOIBEET (016F 42158 8%
T0) cRNI7ENRAIR - HERBEEEY
BHNSHEEBIT B2016F 12831 BRP4
66 IEBRE T -ReRASEBMRL D E
ZENODEFEAEBEREERER L EMH
BREMEREREMGRIELE-

R2017F 128318 RNEBHERRERTHE
JC (20168128318 17528 8B 7T) °
EXRBBH R (UBREERINEEER
B)RBT%(016F12A318 :387%) - REBZE
016FK2017FENA3IBEFER  REBY
mE R EPTEE NN EERE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$415.0
million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$337.3 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$66.7 million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$212.8 million).
The current ratio (which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was
approximately 6.22 (31 December 201 6: approximately 1.58).The significant improvement
in current ratio is mainly due to the repayment of Shareholder's loans in early December
2017.

Capital Expenditure
The Group's capital expenditure was approximately HK$76.6 million (2016: approximately
HK$I5.1 million), representing additions to property, plant and equipment, investment

properties and intangible assets including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$170.2 million (2016: approximately HK$12.4 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant contingent liability (2016:
Nil).

Operating Lease Commitments
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had operating leases commitments of approximately
HK$101.0 million (2016: approximately HK$ 1 15.8 million).

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year
under review, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure,
after netting off the gain and loss derived from foreign exchange difference, was not very
significant. Our management will continue to monitor our foreign exchange exposure and

will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure when it is necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

LITIGATIONS
On 26 January 2018, Zhong Hu Yueyong (Shanghai) Sports Development Limited*

(“Zhong Hu Yueyong"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, commenced
legal proceedings in the Citizen Court of Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC (the "District
Court”) to retain the personal properties of Miss Zhou Ya Li (“Miss Zhou") including
the 74% equity shareholding of Beijing Zhonghu Zhilu Cultural Development Co,, Limited
("Zhonghu Zhilu")*.

On 6 February 2018, Zhong Hu Yueyong filed a formal lawsuit to Miss Zhou in the District
Court for the recovery of a sum of RMB6,400,000 for the sales proceeds on disposal
of 74% of the equity entered of Zhonghu Zhilu on 20 November 2017 and the case is
pending for proceeding under the District Court.

Save as discussed in the above, during the year ended 31 December 2017, no member of
the Group is engaged in any litigation or arbitration or claim of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or

threatened or against any member of the Group.

*  for identification purpose only

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE
Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with exposure spread over a
large number of counterparties and customers. The carrying amounts of bank balances,
trade receivables and other receivables represent the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group will review and monitor the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
at the end of each reporting year, the recoverability of each trade debt is evaluated so as to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,

the Directors are of the view that the Group does not expose to significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-
bearing financial assets, mainly the interest-bearing bank balances. The Group monitors
the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of bank saving

balances and borrowings where necessary.

Liquidity Risk
The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a substantial portion of its financial assets
and financial liabilities are due within one year and it can finance its operations from existing

shareholders’ funds and internally generated cash flows.

For the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and cash
deemed adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effect of fluctuations
in cash flows. The Group monitors current and expected liquidity requirements on a

regular basis.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had |15 full-time employees (2016: 70) in Hong

Kong and the PRC.The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually

according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.

The emolument of each of the Directors and the employees of the Group is on the basis
of their merit, qualification, competence and experience in the industry, the profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other local and international
companies and prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also participate in
bonus arrangements which are determined in accordance with the performance of the

Group and the individual's performance.

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentives to Directors
and eligible persons, details of the scheme as set out in the section with heading “Share

Option Scheme” on pages 33 to 39 of this Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in
Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant funds to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs (excluding director’s and
chief executive's remuneration) incurred for the year were approximately HK$33.9 million

(2016: approximately HK$30.5 million).

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers, in order to
meet our own quality, safety, environmental and product criteria. During the year end 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Group maintained good relationship
with its suppliers. The Group also has a well-established business relationship with the

customers.

During the year under review, there was no dispute on salary payments and all accrued
remunerations, at all kinds, were settled on or before their respective due dates, as
stipulated under individual employee's employment contract. The Group also ensures
that all the employees are reasonably remunerated by regular review and the policies
on salary increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and all other related benefits are
updated from time to time. For details, please refer to the section headed “Employees
and Remuneration Policies” of this Annual Report, Being people-oriented, the Group is
committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for its employees and encourages

them to have a work-life balance.
In view of the above and as at the date of this Annual Report, there is no circumstance of

any event which will have a significant impact on the Group's business and on which the

Group's success depends.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders
for the vear ended 31 December 2017.The declaration, payment, and amount of future
dividend will be decided by the Board and will depend upon, among other things, the
Group's result of operations, capital requirements, cash flows, general financial conditions,

and such other factors as the Board may consider important.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The management believes that clearly defined and long-term development directions
established for different business segments will help drive the Group's sustainable business
growth. Looking ahead, the management will continue to strive for better business
performance and deliver greater value to Shareholders. On behalf of the Company, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, staff, customers and suppliers for

their unwavering support of the Group.

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
27 March 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors present the their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the Company's subsidiaries
are principally engaged in air dome construction and operation, investment and operation
of the sports and entertainment related business in the People’s Republic of China (the

"PRC"), and the provision of air freight services in the wholesale market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) can be found in the sections with
headings of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, and "Five-Year Financial Summary”
set out on pages 6 to 23 and page 5 of this Annual Report respectively. Description of the

risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group believes that sustainable development is an integral part of our business. We
aim at creating long-term values for our stakeholders and contributing to the society by
carrying out our business in a socially responsible way. The Group is committed to support
the environmental sustainability and comply with PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments’ environmental protection laws and regulations. The Company is also
dedicated to promote energy conservation and responding proactively to climatic changes,
so as to facilitate efficient use of energy by taking several measures including constantly
carries out internal recycling measures in terms of its consumables (e.g. Toner cartridge
and paper) and implementing energy-saving policies to reduce electricity consumption, in
order to lessen the impact on environment from operating activities to achieve the target

of sustainable development.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are set out in

note | to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 76

and 77 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders

for the year 31 December 2017.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 12 June 2018 to Friday, 15 June
2018 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, 15 June 2018, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, | | June 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong

that have a significant impact on the Group.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
The Company announced that the address of the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong had changed to Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, |11 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect on 3 January 2017.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note |12 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is

set out on page 5 of this Annual Report. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year are

set out in notes 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 80 and 81 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, accumulated loss of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$200.1 million (2016: approximately HK$209.1 million). Under section 34 of the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for
distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Article of Association”), and no distribution may be paid to the
Shareholders out of the Company's share premium unless the Company shall be able to

pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for 40% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 12%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 38% of the total

purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's share

capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the

laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its Shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Shares for the year ended 31

December 2017.

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed below, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries had issued or granted any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights or exercised any rights in relation to convertible securities,

options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any outstanding bank borrowing (2016:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any finance lease lability. (2016: Nil)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the vear and up to the date of this report are as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Yebi

Mr. Niu Zhongjie

M. Zhu Shixing

Mr. Lam KaTak

Mr: Zhang Tiagzhe

MrTsui Ngai, Eddie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming

Mr. Xin Luo Lin

Mr: Pan Lihui

Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith

In accordance with articles 86(3), 87(1) and 87(2) and A4.2. of the Code on corporate
governance practices as set out in appendix |4 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code”), Mr: Liu Xue Heng, Mr. Zhu Shixing, Mr. Pan Lihui and Mr:Tse Man Kit,
Keith shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") of the
Company. All of the above retiring Directors are eligible and will offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent nonexecutive Directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographies of Directors of the Group are set out on pages 63 to 67 of this Annual Report.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the information of the Director
since the date of the interim report 2017 and up to the date of this Annual Report is set
out below:

Name of Directors Details of Change
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Mr: Xin Luo Lin Resigned as the director of Asia Growth Limited, a public company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
EBRMEE BHEAsia Growth Limited (IR R REF X HM LT ARAR)NES

Resigned as the director and vice chairman of Oriental Technologies Investment Limited, a public

company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.
1T Oriental Technologies Investment Limited (—B B AR RESFR S ETHA

EENEER

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Lam Ka Tak and Mr Zhu Shixing, executive Directors, have entered into a service
contract with the Company on 24 December 2015 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Mr. Liu Xue Heng and Mr Zhang Tingzhe, executive Directors, have entered into a
service contract with the Company on 25 January 2016 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, an independent non-executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 25 January 2016 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Mr. Tsui Ngai, Eddie, an executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 20 July 2016 for a term of three years unless terminated by three months'

notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.
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Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors fees are subject to Shareholders' approval at general meetings; other
emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board with reference to Directors
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group as well as the

recommendation of the remuneration committee.

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out on notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 3| December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to and including the date of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT EERTETHAERARS HERGD R E-E
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES BRZEZRAR

At 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report, the interests of the Directors and ROI7ERAIBREERGERS EEREE
chief executive in the shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the THRABRARRISEAAREE (FEEREFK
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in HRE (o) ([ 2 RIREMRGI] ) EXVED) Z Bkt
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as BATER AR EIREES RS FHIE35214
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code  ZB1F B < EreisiiBiE LR RIMER TP L
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in appendix 10 of the BIIAESETESFR S IRETA| ([BETF

Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are as follows: EUIDEEV - NIV oSS S U
INTEREST IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY RERXARGHER
Number of
underlying
Number of Shares held Approximately
Ordinary Shares pursuant to percentage of
(Note (1)) share options issued Share capital
BB
REBRE B&
EERYA BRZ B8
Name of Directors EE=fg Capacity and nature SRREE (M) HERHEA BAl
Mr.Liu Xue Heng (Note 2) 212E 5% (M) Beneficial Owner = 9,680,000 075%
Mr Hu Yebi HHELE Corporate 110,810,000 968,000 862%
Mr:Niu Zhongje GEERE Corporate 96,800,000 968,000 443%
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe RESEE Beneficial Owner = 968,000 007%
Mr: Lam Ka Tak WREEE Beneficial Owner - 678,000 0.05%
Mr. Tse Man K, Keith Eipe i Beneficial Owner - 968000 007%
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming SEAEE Beneficial Owner = 678,000 0.05%
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FEMREE Beneficial Owner - 968000 007%
Mr.Pan Lihui BUBEAE Beneficial Owner - 677,600 0.05%
Notes: B
(1) Interests in Shares of the Company stated above represent long positions. () LERRARFRG 2ERIBITE -
(2)  MrLiuXue Heng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Q BIBBRERRARITHEH-

LRRE X EEEMERA T
—2—t555 O1
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section

352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading "Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of

the Company to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 27

to the financial statements.

The Company's Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the written
resolutions of the sole Shareholder passed on 3 December 201 |, pursuant to which the
Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think fit, grants share
options to any employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director) of any
member of the Group at the exercise price for such number of Shares as it may determine

in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to
selected eligible persons including employee(s) and Directors as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the date of approving the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme Limit"). As at 16 January 2012, being the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange, the Share Option Scheme Limit was 40,000,000 per-subdivided

Shares.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of ordinary Shares in the capital of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of

ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

A share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is personal to the grantee and
shall not be assignable or transferable. Share options do not counter rights on the holders

to dividend or to vote at Shareholders’ meetings.

On 7 December 2012, the Directors granted a total of 7,980,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of 7,980,000 pre-subdivided Shares.
Owing to the share subdivision on 24 May 2013 (after adjustment for the subdivision of
Shares from nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share to HK$0.005 per Share in 2013), the
Share Option Scheme Limit was adjusted and the Directors were authorized to grant
share options to subscribe for up to 80,000,000 Shares in which 15,960,000 share options
(after adjustment) had been granted.

During the year 2014, 2,200,000 shares options and 6,860,000 shares options were being

cancelled and exercised respectively.

The remaining 6,900,000 share options were subsequently cancelled due to the mandatory
unconditional cash offer completed on 8 April 2015. No other share option was granted
during the year 2015 and the total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 64,040,000 Shares representing approximately 6.83% of the total
issued Shares capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

On 8 April 2016, the Directors granted a total of 58,500,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of 58,500,000 Shares.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an AGM of the Company held on |5 June
2016, the Company approved to refresh the Share Option Scheme Limit. Share options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including options outstanding, cancelled, or lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the relevant scheme rules) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed. Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Company has

no other share option scheme currently in force for the year under review.

On 15 June 2016, there are 58,500,000 outstanding share options, which represent
approximately 6.04% of the total number of Shares in issue as at |5 June 2016. On the
basis of 968,230,000 Shares in issue as at the |5 June 2016, the Company may grant share
options to eligible participants conferring on them right to subscribe for a total of up to
96,823,000 Shares which, when aggregated with 58,500,000 Shares that may be issued
under the outstanding share options (amounting to 155,323,000 Shares which represents
approximately 16.04% of the total number of Shares in issue as at |15 June 2016), is within
the said limit of 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time as required

under the Share Option Scheme.

On 12 December 2016, the Directors granted a total of 9,680,000 share options to
employee under the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of 9,680,000

Shares.

As at 31 December 2016, a total of 1,936,000 share options were forfeited due to
resignation of a Director and employee. The total number of outstanding share options was
66,244,000 which represent approximately 5.67% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2016.
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During the Year, a total of 9,680,000 share options and 6,562,900 share options were being

forfeited and exercised respectively.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an AGM of the Company held on 16 June
2017, the Company approved to refresh the Share Option Scheme Limit. Share options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including options outstanding, cancelled, or lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the relevant scheme rules) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed. Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Company has

no other share option scheme currently in force for the year under review.

As at 31 December 2017, there are 50,001,100 outstanding share options, representing
approximately 3.86% of the total number of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017.
On the basis of 1,296,792,900 Shares in issue as at the 31 December 2017, and taking
into account the outstanding 50,001,100 share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for up to a total of 50,001,100 Shares (the “Outstanding Options”),
the Company may grant share options to eligible participants conferring on them right to
subscribe for a total of up to 117,286,250 Shares which, when aggregated with 50,001,100
Shares that may be issued under the Outstanding Options (amounting to 167,287,350
Shares which represents approximately 12.90% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
31 December 2017), is within the said limit of 30% of the total number of Shares in issue

from time to time as required under the Share Option Scheme.
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The Directors consider that the Company should refresh the Share Option Scheme
Limit so that the Company could have more flexibility to provide incentives to the eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme by way of granting share options to them to
strive for the future development and success of the Group.The Directors further consider
that the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme Limit is in the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole because it enables the Company to reward appropriately

and motivate the eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of
the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an option is

exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is to be determined by
the Board provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer for the grant of the option, which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise

price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.

The Shares Option Scheme will be expired on 2 December 2021 if not be terminated by
any general meeting earlier The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is 4 years at the

report date.
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The following table disclosures movements in the Company's share options outstanding TEREBARANRFANKITEERE . Z
during the year: £k
Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise
Granted Exercised Forfeited price of
At | January during the during the during the At 31 December  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options™
Name or category of participant 2017 Year Year Year 2017 share options* share options HKS$ per share
MOTE REEER  REFER  REAFER mo7E  REBRE BRE BRE
#ESSREER 1A18 B (i RY 2A3IB A& TEHE TRE
SRER
Directors:
BE:
Mr. Liu Xue Heng 9,680,000 - - - 9680000 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
BELE 201654788 201654 F8AZ202654A78
Mr: Hu Yebi 968,000 = = = 968000 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
BEERE 201654788 201654 A8E 2202654 A7H
Mr.Niu Zhongjie 968,000 - - - 968000  8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
LEERE 2016F4A8H 201654 A8H 2202654478
Mr:Lam Ka Tak 968,000 - (290,000) - 678000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0.764
HEREE 2016F478H 201654 A8H 2202654778
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe 968,000 - - - 968000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16to 7-Apr-26 0.764
REMEE 201654 A8H 2016F4A8AZ2026F4A78
MrTse, Man Kit, Keith 968,000 - - - 968000  8Apnil 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
AXBEE 20165F4A8H 01654 A8 2202654478
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming 968,000 - (290,000) - 678000  8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
ZEHEE 201654788 201654 F8AZ2026F4A78
MrXin Luo Lin 968,000 = = = 968000 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
FEMEL 2016F4A8H 201654 F8H £2026F4A78
Mr.Pan Lihui 968,000 - (290400) - 677600  8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
BIRLE 2016F4A8H 201654 A8H 2202654478
17,424,000 - (870400) - 16,553,600
Other employees: 39,140,000 = (5,692500) = 33447500 8Apri 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HitfES: 2016F4A8H 201654 A8H £2026F4A78
9,680,000 - - (9,680,000) - 12 December 2016 12-Dec-16 10 | 1-Dec-26 1.386
WI6ENANA WI6F 128128 Z2026F 128118
66,244,000 - (6562900) (9,680,000) 50,001,100
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: FRBARITEBREREH
e 201654 A8 FR I v BIRET BN BE

ko The vesting period of the share options granted on 8 April 2016 is: first 30% of the share
options granted will be vested in one year after 8 April 2016, second 40% of the share options
granted will be vested in two years after 8 April 2016 and remaining 30% of the share options
granted will be vested in three years after 8 April 2016.The share options are exercisable from
the vesting date until 7 April 2026.
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The vesting period of the share options granted on 12 December 2016 is: first 30% of the
share options granted will be vested in one year after |2 December 2016, second 40% of
the share options granted will be vested in two years after 12 December 2016 and remaining
30% of the share options granted will be vested in three years after 12 December 2016.The

share options are exercisable from the vesting date until | | December 2026.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus

issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

##%  The closing prices of the Company's shares immediately before the date on which the options
were granted during the year on 8 April 2016 and |12 December 2016 was HK$0.764 per
Share and HK$1.386 per Share, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 25 — Loans from a Shareholders of this report, no other contracts
of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2017 and as at the date of the report, the following interests and short
positions of 5% or more of the share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO:

FTERFERHMATRROSEBER D 2 EHE
5879

R2017F 12831 B RRAREBE - AR AR
BREERBERHENEBETEEZEEE
AR AR B A AN RIAR AR I B AR 5%k A |
ZREERABNT:

Number of Percentage of Number
ordinary  the Company’s of share
Name Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital options held
g ER HART FrisRRE
& Wit BOREZEME L ¢=) BREBDH R
Beijing Enterprises Medical and (a) Through a controlled corporation 353,000,000 2723 =
Health Industry Group Limited
("BEMH")
LB ERFEEXEEERAF BRXEEE
([tEEmReEE])
United Win International Corporation (a) Directly beneficially owned 353,000,000 2723 =
BERELHA
Hollyview International Limited (b) Directly beneficially owned 110,810,000 8.55 -
BERERER
Mr: Hu Yebi (b) Through a controlled corporation 110,810,000 8.62 968,000
HBEELE BRTEEE

(@)  BEMH s the sole shareholder of United Win International Corporation.

(b)  MrHuYebiis the sole beneficial shareholder of Hollyview International Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2017 and as at the date of this report, no
person, other than the directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party and connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is contained in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its employees.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits to employees

beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$ 1,500 commenced from | June 2014. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at year ended 31

December 2017.

DONATION

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in

relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules

since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012.

LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2017 and as at the date of this report, the Group had no pending

litigation or arbitration.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company is contained in note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Company is contained in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set out in note

40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The Company's
corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the corporate governance

report on pages 45 to 62 of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young

who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming

AGM. Having approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee,

a resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the independent auditor of the Company and

to authorise the Board to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
27 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed itself to enhance the standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics with the firm belief that they are essential for maintaining
and promoting investors" confidence and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory

requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellent corporate governance.

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (formerly known as “ASR
Logistics Holdings Limited") is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has its Shares
listing on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing Date"). The corporate
governance rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate Governance Code as set out
in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code from the Listing
Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised Corporate Governance Code from | April
2012 until 31 December 2017 respectively, except for the deviations from code provisions

A2.1,A6.7 and D.| 4 of the Corporate Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A2.1, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Liu Xue Heng is both the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered that Mr. Liu Xue Heng has
in-depth knowledge and experience in the sports and entertainment related business in
the PRC; and he is the most appropriate person. Notwithstanding the above, the Board
will review the current structure from time to time. When at the appropriate time and if
candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within

or outside the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.
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Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive Directors and other
non-executive Directors should attend general meetings to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of Shareholders. During the year, not all independent non-
executive Directors attended general meetings of the Company due to other business

engagements, which have deviated from Code Provision A.6.7.

Code Provision D.|.4

Under the code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal letters of appointment
for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company
did not sign formal letters of appointment with Mr. Hu Yebi, Mr. Niu Zhongjie, Mr: Lok
Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui. However, the said Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association. In addition, the said Directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out
in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines
for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable)
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing their duties and

responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure

compliance Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performances. Presently, the company
secretary is responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed, either by her
or by members of the Company's senior management, on issues arising at the Board
meetings. The Board delegates its authority and responsibilities to the senior management
for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into by the senior

management.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation to the
Company as well as the advices and services of the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed.
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There are established procedures for Directors to seek independent professional advices
for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the Company's

expense.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 3| December 2017 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
seven executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. The profile of each Director is set out in the “Biographies
of Directors” section in this Annual Report. The Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the

Board functions.

The Company had received an annual written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for specific terms and their terms
of office shall expire at the third AGM of the Company after the last appointment and may
be renewed subject to the Shareholders” approval at such AGM. Under the Articles of
Association, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
AGM at which they retire. Also, under the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code, every Director; including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At the forthcoming AGM, Mr. Liu Xue Heng, Mr. Zhu Shixing, Mr: Pan Lihui and MrTse Man

Kit, Keith will retire as Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The family relationships among the Board members, if any, are disclosed under

"Biographies of Directors” section in this Annual Report.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against for Directors and officers in compliance with code provision A.1.8. The insurance
coverage is reviewed by the Company on an annual basis. During the year under review, no

claim was made against the Directors and officers of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out below:

0 developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

0 reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

0 reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

0 developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

0 reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at regular intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.

The Board met 16 times during the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, overseeing the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions, risk management and internal control systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the CEO and the senior

management.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 7 days before
the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings. For
committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required notice period

stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are normally sent to all Directors before each Board meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board and each Director also have

separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached are kept by the secretary of the meetings and are open for inspection by

the Directors.
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The composition of the Board and the attendance of individual members of the Board and

HEWI7FENANBLFE EFSHERK

Board committees meetings during the year ended 3| December 2017 are set out in the ERIKERNESEREZZESERELHE
table below: BAEN TR
Attendance
HEER
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Comnmittee
Directors Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting General meeting
gz EZEEH FIZEEE8 FHZEEEEE REZEEER ETN-
Executive Directors
HITES
Liu Xue Heng 13/16 - - - 212
B8
Hu Yebi 12/16 - 1/l /1 22
EiEES
Niu Zhongjie 14/16 - /1 /1 12
TER
Zhu Shixing 15/16 - - - 12
ML E
Lam KaTak /16 - - - 212
HEE
Zhang Tingzhe 15/16 = = = 112
RER
Tsui Ngai, Eddie 16/16 - S S =
(i:3'8
Independent non-executive Directors
BAFHTES
Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming 16/16 212 I/ I/ 212
SEHA
Xin Luo Lin 16/16 212 /1 1/l 212
FREM
Pan Lihui 16/16 212 1/l /1 212
&
Tse Man Kit, Keith 8/16 - - - 22
i X
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and professional development

programs for Directors.

During the year ended 3| December 2017, all Directors of the Company received regular
briefings, seminars, conference and/or updates relevant to the Group's business, operations,
risk management, corporate governance, directors’ duty and responsibilities, and other
relevant topics. Materials on new or salient changes to laws and regulations applicable to
the Group were provided to the Directors. All Directors have provided the Company with

their respective training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the execution of
its responsibilities, the Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee. Independent
non-executive Directors play an important role in these committees to ensure that

independent and objective views are expressed and to promote critical review and control.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The Audit

Committee comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Lok
Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr: Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui and is chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence
Yuen Ming, a qualified accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended in 29 March
2016 to reflect the additional responsibilities of the Audit Committee arising from the
Stock Exchange's proposal on risk management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after Ist January,
2016. It is responsible for appointment of external auditor; review of the Group's financial
information and overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control procedures. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. It meets
regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end, has
unrestricted access to the Company's external auditor: Its terms of reference are available

on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

To comply with the requirement under the Corporate Governance Code in respect
of the responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board has
delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to develop and review the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to the Directors and employees; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management and to review
the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance

Code contained in the Listing Rules and disclosures in the corporate governance report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, two meetings were held by the Audit
Committee including the reviews and approvals of the annual results for 2016 and the
interim results for 2017. It also reviewed the Company's progress in implementing the

corporate governance requirements as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee which can be viewed on the website of
the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 | with
its written terms of reference revised on 27 March 2012. The Remuneration Committee
comprises of five members, namely Mr. Hu Yebi and Mr Niu Zhongjie who are the
executive Directors and Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui
who are the independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is

chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
[t also makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year for reviewing the remuneration
policy and structure and recommending the annual remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior executives and other related matters. Its terms of

reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December, 2017, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed
remuneration policy and oversee the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management taking into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable

companies, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

Further particulars regarding Directors and chief executive's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to appendix |16 to the Listing

Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

To comply with the Corporate Governance Code, a Nomination Committee was
established on 3 December 201 | with its terms of reference revised on 30 August 2013.
The Nomination Committee comprises of five members, namely Mr. Hu Yebi and Mr. Niu
Zhongjie who are the executive Directors and Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr: Xin Luo
Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration

Committee is chaired by Mr. Pan Lihui.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment or re-appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size,
diversity and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and accessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director: Its terms of reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 3| December 2017, the Nomination Committee had reviewed and
evaluated the composition of the Board with reference to certain criteria. These criteria
included qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws regarding
characteristics and skills of the Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as ability to devote sufficient time
to the work of the Board and its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and
Shareholders” meetings; reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the retiring

Directors; and assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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PREAEE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION B HETH
For the year ended 3| December 2017, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young, BZE0I7F2A3BLLEE B/ EBREAL
the independent auditors of the Company, is set as follows: RIRBAN 2 K G ST RN B R PR 2 BB DI 2 T -
2017
20175
HK$'000
THERT
Audit Services BB 2,007
Non-audit services FEBRIZIRT 749
Total st 2,756

The non-audit services represent the engagement in connection with the Group’s 2017 ERZ RIS IEE ASEE2017F h EIE 5 5

interim financial report and the preparation of the Environmental, Social and Governance ERGRARNBEEW0I7F2AIBLEFE

Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.The Audit Committee ~ ZIR¥E - HEREAMELLZE -FHLES

had concluded that it is satisfied with the findings of its review of the audit and non-audit BEREMUBERIEERRE CER B

services fees, process and effectiveness, independence and objectively. BUARBMM BUYUEREHMEETRTZ
R
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements for each financial
period with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and suitable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is contained in the

Independent Auditor's Report.

The Board confirmed that it has taken the same view from the Audit Committee regarding

the appointment of the external auditor.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The systems include a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and are designed for the Group to identify
and manage the significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group's business objectives.
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Under Code Provision C.2.5, the Group should have an internal audit function. The Group
conducted an annual review on the need for setting up an internal audit department.
Given the Group's simple operating structure at the present moment, it was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board through the Audit Committee had conducted an annual
review on the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Appropriate measures have been put in place to
manage the risks. No major issue was raised for improvement. The improvement of the
systems of risk management and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the Group's control environment and

processes.

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and formulated the inside information policy. The Company regularly reminds
the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update

appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on 16 January
2012.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Jan Wing Fu, Barry (“Mr. Jan"), is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. He is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully apprised of
the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the

Group and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr Jan was appointed as the chief financial officer; the company secretary and an
authorized representative of the Company with effect from 15 June 2016. Mr. Jan was a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants till December 2015 and
has been an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 1993. He obtained a bachelor degree in business administration from the University
of New Brunswick, Canada in December 1989. Mr. Jan has over 27 years of solid

experience in auditing, accounting, general management and financial control.

M Jan reports to the Chairman, plays an essential role in the relationship between the
Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to

Shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the vear ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Jan has attended relevant professional
seminars to update his skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing

Rules to take no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholders meetings. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.bsehk.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted. The Board, according
to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company voting will be announced on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to the
Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal
relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a director. The
relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of
this Annual Report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to Shareholders of
any future AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Article 88 of the Articles of Association provides that if a Shareholder duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a Director of
the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall deposit
a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days after
the dispatch of the notice of AGM of the Company. Details of the Shareholders’ right to
propose a person for election as a Director and the related procedures are set out in the
constitutional documents of the Company published on the Stock Exchange's website

(www.hkexnews.hk).

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar. Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong at Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | || Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association (“M&A") of the
Company during the year under review. A copy of the latest consolidated version of the
M&A of the Company is posted on the Company's website (www.bsehk.com) and the

Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk).
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes
periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well

as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

In January 2016, the Stock Exchange amended the Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG") Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide" or the “Guide”) set out in appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

The amendments to the ESG Guide and related Listing Rules will come into effect in two

phases.

The Listing Rule amendments and the upgrade of the general disclosures in the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain”, as well as the revised recommended disclosures,

will be effective for the Company's financial year commencing on or after | January 2016.

The upgrade of the KPIs in the “Environmental” Subject Area of the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain” will be effective for the Company's financial year

commencing on or after | January 2017.

The independent ESG report will be posted on the Company website (www.bsehk.com)
and the Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) within three months of the

publication of the Annual Report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an effective
distribution of the resources and Shareholders’ interests. The senior management will
continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group's corporate

governance level and quality.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists of eleven Directors, including

seven executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, and the chief executive officer with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Liu is currently
an executive director; joint-chief executive officer, an authorized representative and a
member of Investment and Risk Management Committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical
And Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Before joining the Company, he
served as an executive director and the chairman of Investment and Risk Management
Committee of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 925) during the period
from | January 2011 to 23 December 2015. He was also an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718)
during the period from |1 July 2014 to 19 January 2016, as well as an independent non-
executive director of Guangshen Railway Co,, Limited (stock code: 525) during the period
from 2 June 2011 to 29 May 2014 respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business
Administration from Cambridge University in the United Kingdom. He has extensive
experience in equity investment, corporate finance, initial public offer, and mergers and

acquisitions.

Mr. Hu Yebi, aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 23 April
2015. Mr. Hu is the founder and chairman of Vision Finance Group Limited. Mr Hu
received his Master of Business Administration from Netherlands International Institute for
Management in the Netherlands and a Postgraduate Diploma in Management Engineering
from Beijing Institute of Technology in Beijing, the PRC. Mr. Hu has more than 26 vears
of experience in securities and financial services, merger and acquisition and corporate
finance. Mr. Hu also holds concurrent executive directorships with Beijing Enterprises
Medical and Health Industry Limited (stock code: 2389) and Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 925).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Niu Zhongjie, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 23
April 2015. He is an executive director of Vision Finance International Company Limited,
a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance which is engaged in
advising on merger and acquisition and corporate finance. He also serves an independent
non-executive director of Gold— Finance Holdings Limited (stock code: 1462) since 3
February 2016. Mr. Niu obtained a master degree in business administration. Mr. Niu has

extensive experience in equity capital markets.

Mr. Zhu Shixing, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24
December 2015. Mr. Zhu is currently an executive director; chairman and member of
investment and risk management committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health
Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Mr. Zhu graduated from the Central University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor's degree in finance and obtained his master
degree in software engineering from Beihang University. In addition, Mr. Zhu obtained
a bachelor degree in sport management from Beijing Sport University in July 1994
Mr Zhu started his career as an assistant in the investment department of the China
Xinxing Corporation (Group) Limited* in 1994. During the period from 2004 to 2015,
he joined Beijing Holdings Limited ("BHL"), an affiliate of Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited (“BPHL", HKEx stock code: 925), and had been nominated the vice general
manager of various subsidiaries of BHL involving in industries of tourism, logistics, property
development and the executive vice president of BPHL. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience

in investment, financial management and property development.

* - For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 36, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24
December 2015. Mr. Lam has over 10 years of experience in accounting and financial
matters. Mr. Lam currently served as the chief financial officer; the company secretary, the
authorized representative and the member of investment and risk management committee
of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389) and
is mainly responsible for overseeing the financial management, regulatory compliance and
investors related matters. Mr. Lam also serves as an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of the audit committee, and the member of the remuneration committee
of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (stock code: 1483). Mr. Lam worked as an audit
manager at KPMG till September 2010. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003 and a Master in Business
Administration degree from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013. He was a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants till June 2010 and has been

a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.

Mr. Zhang Tingzhe, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 25
January 2016. Mr. Zhang was the assistant general manager of Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 925) since 2010, devoting himself to the projects of developing and
managing commercial real estate and logistics real estate segment in Beijing. Mr. Zhang
founded Beijing Hongse Guangbo Advertising Co.,, Limited* in 2003 and served as the
general manager; the major customers of which are social welfare institutions including
Ministry of Health, Chinese Center For Disease Control And Prevention and United
Nations International Children's Emergency Fund. He served as the creative director in
numerous famous advertising and media creation companies during the period from 1998
to 2003, mainly responsible for full scheme image planning, business marketing planning and
implementation of media delivery. Mr. Zhang obtained a degree of bachelor in Industrial

Design* from Luxun Academy of Fine Arts, Liaoning in 1997.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Tsui Ngai, Eddie, aged 32, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
20 July 2016. Mr.Tsui is currently the Senior Manager of Everbright Securities Hong Kong
Limited. He is also a Project Manager of K)ZEE471% & BBR A 7). Mr Tsui obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting & Finance from the University of Durham, United
Kingdom in June 201 1. Mr. Tsui has strong background in finance with over five years of

experience in hedge fund and securities management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Lok has more than 30 years of experience
in public accounting, finance and commercial working experience in both Sydney and
Hong Kong. Mr Lok received his Master of Economics — Professional Accounting
from Macquarie University, New South Wales Australia in 1988. He was qualified as an
accountant in 1987, and is an associate member of Hong Kong Society of Accountants and
a fellow member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He has been the chief

executive officer of CSI Investment Management Limited in Hong Kong since 2001,

Mr. Xin Luo Lin, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Xin was a postgraduate from the Peking University in the
PRC in 1980. He was a visiting scholar at the Waseda University, Japan between 1980
and 1983, an honorary research associate at the University of British Columbia, Canada
during 1983 and 1984, and a visiting fellow at the Australia National University, Australia
from 1984 to 1985. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in New South Wales of
Australia in 1991. He was appointed as an adviser to the chairman of Guangdong Capital
Holdings Limited from 1998 to 2000. He is an independent investor with over 20 years of
experience in investment banking in the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Xin is currently:
(i) an independent non-executive director of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock
code: |168); and (i) an independent non-executive director of Central China Real Estate

Limited (stock code: 832).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Lihui, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor degree in International Economics
from Beijing University of International Relations in the PRC in 1989. He has over 25 vears
of experience in nonferrous metals industry. Mr. Pan worked in Mind Honour Limited from
1994 to 1998 as a manager. Mr. Pan founded Pentart Industrial Limited in 1998 and Able
Plus International Limited in 2001 and has since been a director and general manager of

these two companies.

Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Tse is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited (stock code: | 165)
since September 2010. Mr. Tse also serves as an independent non-executive director; the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical And Health Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 2389). Mr.Tse has around 20 years of working experience in accounting and
financial management. He worked in a number of international accountant firms and the
qualified accountant of Fosun International Limited (stock code: 656). Mr.Tse is a fellow of
CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr.Tse obtained a bachelor's degree in commerce from University of Wollongong, New

South Wales, Australia in July 1997, majoring in accountancy and finance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B

e

Ernst & Young TXKETRI SR
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEDIRREEIR
ﬁﬂ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue hiEKE221&

Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT
INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 76 to 203, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Codle
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfiled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMEHRREERSR

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

o2 =Ykl &3 47

The Group derived a significant portion of its revenues from
construction-type contracts that were accounted for by applying the

percentage-of-completion (POC) method.
BEEERAHO KA REERATIED
HEEEAR -

b (TPOC ] ) JEABR

We evaluated the management's assumptions and estimates in relation
to the revenue recognition on construction contracts through inquiry,
performing gross profit analysis and examining the related supporting
documents such as project status documentation and invoices and

contracts with customers and suppliers on a sampling basis. We also re-

performed the calculation of the percentage of completion for material

The POC method involves the use of significant management
judgement and estimates, and the revenue, cost and gross profit

realised on such contracts can vary from the Group's original

estimates because of changes in conditions. RESHREER
POCES RERERNEREAE LG EABEANEE |ONTIAN:
Bl RAREMATRGHESE SEEREMGTEM

TR

construction contracts on a sample basis.
BERBMEER ETEND
EEX BRRERF RHERILNEH)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WA R
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key audit matter

BRELSR

HRELEE (A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMEHREERSR

As a result, we identified revenue recognition on construction

contracts as a key audit matter.

Bt EEHRES NN RERAEMNSBREZSZH -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BRRBEHR R A P SRR GE3 P TS

Goodwill impairment

BERE

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standards 36 Impairment
of Assets, the Group is required to annually test the amount of
goodwill for impairment. This annual impairment test was significant
to our audit because the net carrying amount of goodwill of
approximately HK$29,138,000 as of 31 December 2017 was material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, management's
assessment process was complex and highly judgmental and was
based on assumptions, specifically budgeted gross margins and growth
rates, which were affected by expected future market or economic
conditions.

REFESTERESE [BERE] BEXEERFER
ELESFLETAR FEAEIAHES EILAER
REBEZ017F12A31 A E B REFEA29,1380008 7T
RESHBHRREENID - 1 EREMHBRER
BRI REATERSARR AP UBEEEN R ER
KELERRE ZMBERRXEHRRTEGREERRTE -

Goodwill disclosures are included in notes 3 and 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

AENRBERNGA VBRI EIRMEI4-
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We involved our internal valuation expert to assist us in evaluating
the methodologies and significant inputs such as discount rate used by
the Group. We also assessed key assumptions including growth rate
and gross margin by comparison to the historical performance of the
related cash-generation units and performed sensitivity analyses on the
assumptions used in the cash flow projections.

EZEABEEESRGHESHE EEEERNTERE
RBABE (WHE) - BSEBLRERREELENNE
ERAFEIERR BRERIERENR THRERERN
PR A RRETHRRE DN

We also assessed the related disclosures made in the consolidated

financial statements.

EENEF G HHRRELHAREE-



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key audit matter

BRELSR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %R EN RS
HRELEE (A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBERNAEHERERER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and the amounts due

from constract customer.

ESERFT AR IEWEHIE P AR B 1E e o

As at 3| December 2017, the Group had trade receivables of
HK$57,216,000 and the amounts due from contract customer
of HK$65,684,000. Trade receivables and the amounts due from
contract customer constituted a significant portion of total assets as
at 31 December 2017 and the Group was exposed to credit risks
arising therefrom.

R2017F12A318 BEXEHE 5 EWHIR72160008 T
RIEW & #% P FRIE65,684,000/8 7T ° 18201 74E 12431 H - B 5
BEFIERERAOEFPTIABREEENTEND T &
SERNEEREERR -

Management assessed whether a provision for impairment was
needed in respect of those trade receivables and the amounts
due from contract customers that might not be fully recoverable.
The determination as to whether a trade receivable or an amount
due from contract customer was recoverable involved significant
management judgment. Specific factors management considered
included the ageing of the balances, recent historical payment
patterns, existence of disputes, and any other available information
concerning the creditworthiness of the debtors.
EEECHEREFTUARELIZBRANE 5 EWFIRL
BERAENEFFRELRERRF BE—REHRKFIAL
—HERSNEPREZIREL S REREREHE- &
BEZEARARERER KRR ROELXNAA &
MM P ABRHAGE CEMEMAKE ZER

Disclosures on trade receivable and amounts due from contract
customer are included in notes 3, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
EHRBFIERERENEFFENREHNGE M BRE
PEE3 ~ BiRE 17 R B aE 18 o

Our audit procedures included, among others, obtaining on understanding
of management's assessment on the recoverability and reviewing the
aging analysis of trade receivables and amounts due from contract
customers. We also obtained direct confirmations for trade receivables
from certain debtors, on sample basis, checked the bank receipts of the
payments received subsequent to the year end.
BEENENEFEE (KPR TREEEH A mkEma
BB E S BUGRARERAOEF SRR D - BF T
ERETEZRUFRESANERER MEFEEREKRK
REERTT IR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B M % B

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or; if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BN S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED R EMHBRESMBRENEE (&)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters EEREEHZELBRBNEEF REW
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of LERHARGERBRRNELLESR
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters REZ AMmMEKEREZEE RIDEER
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the ERIDHLARBRBNLEEE INEFR

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not MIEAT ESRRBRELEEHEASER
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would HNTRERBEEARANBLESENF
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. aMPERREFRE SREZEENZH

BsRS Rt ERIR -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is HARBURHBMBENEZBEERAR

Wong Man Kit. B

Ernst & Young RKEERHAT
Certified Public Accountants B EDITAT

Hong Kong BB

27 March 2018 20183 H27H

ERBE X EREERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBREkHEMEEKER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE017F12A3NB LFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt TR TET
REVENUE Y gs 5 156,823 82518
Cost of sales HEKAK (117,499) (73930)
Gross profit EF 39,324 8,588
Other income and gains HAth o A\ R W zs 5 74,078 15,866
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HAX (11,363) (1768)
Administrative expenses GG (75,771) (58,059)
Other expenses HAth 7 2 (26,654) (14272)
Finance costs AR 7 (7,505) (868)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRI RIS 6 (7,891) (50,513)
Income tax expense g T 10 (10,243) (1,605)
LOSS FORTHE YEAR FNERE (18,134) (52,118)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hfth 2 Mk
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be RRERAEEN S EERRZ
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hi2E Rz (FE)
periods:
Available-for-sale financial assets: AftHESRERE
Changes in fair value NABEEZS (504) 653
Reclassification adjustments for loss included 7 B ARG AB & 18
in profit or loss — loss on disposal —HEEE - 2,157
Income tax effect PSR & 83 =
421) 2810
Exchange differences: BE =5
Exchange differences on translation of MBI EBEECERZRE
foreign operations 2,078 (2,244)
Reclassification adjustments for foreign BN BABRFANLE 2 8INER
operations disposed of during the year 31 906 225
2,984 (2019)
Net other comprehensive income to be RRERAEEN D EERRZ
reclassified to profit or loss in Hfth 2 E e F 58
subsequent periods 2,563 791
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEEKE (MRHE)
FORTHEYEAR, NET OF TAX 2,563 791
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FORTHE FRNEHEBERERE
YEAR (15,571) (51,327)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEakEMEEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HZ2017512R31BILFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE THET FTET
Loss attributable to: AT EIRELEE:
— Owners of the parent —BRAREEA (24,106) (48,264)
— Non-controlling interests — IR 5,972 (3,854)
(18,134) (52,118)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) NTEBEGEEERE
attributable to: (BB BHE:
— Owners of the parent —BRAHEEA (27,708) 46,611)
— Non-controlling interests —IFE R = 12,137 4716)
(15,571) (51,327)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO yNC]
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF TRRERFAA
THE PARENT ElEERER Il
Basic and diluted EXREE HK$(2.0) centsBfll  HK$(4.6) centsiEll

LEME X EEEEARAT
—2—txgg (1



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=E B BAR R &
31 December 2017
2017912A31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TER FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERE 12 18,746 17,617
Investment property KB 13 18,667 87,000
Goodwil Gk 14 29,138 764
Other intangible assets Hin & & 15 33,596 =
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERFIE e R EAMERRIE 16 14,778 9,794
Amounts due from contract customer ERERE P RIA 17 11,590 =
Trade receivables B 5 REWFIE 18 5,376 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EEREE 21 108,166 -
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 19 769 =
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 240,826 115,175
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories "E 20 3,430 521
Amounts due from contract customer e E KT P RIE 17 54,094 =
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R IE R RIE 18 51,840 6,652
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERFTIE B R EAMERRIE 16 43,422 23,700
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EEREE 21 122,717 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBaEED 22 139,489 306,398
Total current assets MEBEERE 414,992 337,271
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAME
Trade and bills payables BIHRNRIBRENEE 23 32,246 8,202
Other payables and accruals Hth e 5018 R 5+ & 24 23,334 25,798
Loans from shareholders RERE > 25 - 175,156
Tax payable JE TR IE 11,165 3,654
Total current liabilities REEEERE 66,745 212,810
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B A N
mEmBERRE
3| December 2017
2017124318
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FER FHEIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS TmEEEFE 348,247 124,461
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #2ZERTEEAERE 589,073 239,636
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *RBES
Other payables H At < 3018 24 600 774
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE 19 8,530 233
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERE 9,130 1,007
Net assets EEFE 579,943 238,629
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ B A R HEE AE(LER
Share capital AR 26 6,484 5841
Reserves ] 28 443222 221,199
449,706 227,040
Non-controlling interests g i 130,237 11,589
Total equity MRS 579,943 238,629
Liu Xueheng Hu Yebi
2218 HEE
Director Director
EE EE

LREE Y EERMERA T
—z—t555 9



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERRBER

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE07EN2ANALEFE
Autributable to owners of the parent
BAREEARE
Available-for-
sale financial
Share Statutory  Share-based asset Non-
Share premium Capital Exchange and legal payment  revaluation  Accumulated controlling Total
Notes capital account reserve reserves reserves reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
AiHE
Lo EER URHAEE SHEE it FER
(i3 B BER  ERRE  ENRR  QEBE  NAREBE RS it | Eh Rit b2 4
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T Tin Tin Tin AR ThR ThR TR TR TR
Balnce at | encery 2017 2017151 B LT T 80 e Sy WM S8 2860
Loss for the year FABR - - - - - - - (4108 (24108) 597 (18,134
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ FREM2E
for the year Wit/ (58)
Exchange differences related to RBENEH
foreign operations EREE - - - (3,181) - - - - (3,181) 6,165 2984
Change infar value of avalable-forsale AT EiE ERE N/ BfE
nvestments,net of tax 288 NREE - - - - - - (421) - (421) - (1)
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ FAZERE/ (BHE)
forthe year 5 - - - (3.181) - - @1 (04105 (27.708) 12137 (15571)
lsue of share o a shareholder H-2RREARG 610 270 - - - - - - M - MmN
Exercie of share options EEkE 3 79 - - - (2.941) - - 5014 - 5014
Capita contribution from FERERLE
non-controliing shareholders - - 7989 - - - - - 7989 4643 12,632
Equitysettled share based payment. ~ MEREEHHRIA A
amangements ERMARZH 7 - - - - - 993 - - 993 - 993
Acquistion ofa subsidiary WE-RHEAR 30 - - - - - - - - - 10814 110814
Acquistion of non-controling interests  WEEFE IR IE &% - - (895) - - - - - (895) (234) (3219)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 3 - - - - - - - - - (6622) (6622)
Transfer to reserve BHERRE - - - - 87 - - (867) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 ROI7E12A3IRH)
it 6,484 537,206 9464 (1,733)* 37 18,694 @ (1378 449706 130237 579943
d These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$443,222,000 (2016: & ZERERORBGRMBRRE 2 FE R

HK$221,199,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2016

BZ2016512A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAER AR
Avallable-for-
sale financial
Share Statutory  Share-based assets Non-
Share premium Capital Exchange and legal payment  revaluation  Accumulated controling
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
fhE
i EER DRhAER EREE Zif AR
(i e BEE  EREE  ERER  AERE  ONNEE  EHEE BB &t {5 ik

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERL T T T T T T TR TEx TR TERL

Balance at | January 2016 201651 A1 B #feh 4689 146536 5845 2605 2870 - (2810) (50488) 109,247 211 11358
Comprehensive income 2EYE

~Loss for the year -EnER = = - - = = = (48264) (48264) (3854) (52,118)
Other comprehensive loss Hb2EESR
Exchange differences related to RBENEH

foreign operations EREE - - - (1157) - - - - (1,157) (862) (2019)
Changes in fair value of A ESHERY

avlable-forsale fnanci assets MEERD 2 - - - - - - 2810 - 2810 - 2810
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ EA2ABELE - - - (1157) - - 2810 (48264) (46611 (4716) (51327)
Issue of shares EaRA 2% 1,152 155028 - - - - - - 156,180 - 156,180
Capital contribution from FERERTE

non-controliing shareholders = = = = = = = = = 10594 10594
Fauity-settled share-based payment ~ JlEREERIUR

arangements REROITRS 7 - - - - - 11,69 - - 11,699 - 11,699
Acqistion of subsidaries WEEmERA bij - - - - - - - - - 2167 2067
Acquistion of non-controling interests & kg R = = (3475) - - - - - (3475 3475 -
Disposal of subsidaries HENBAR 30 - - - - - - - - - (2040) (2040)
Balance at 31 December 2016 #0I65128318

ik 5841 301,564% 2370% | 448* 2870% 11,699% = (98752)% 07040 11589 238629

tREEXEXEBRRAAE
“E-tFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A B =
HmEBEERER
Year ended 31 December 2017
HZ2017F12A31BILFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i & FTHET FTET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETDHRERERE:
ACTIVITIES:
Loss before tax: BRAEAIE 1R : (7.891) (50,513)
Adjustments for: FLATIEE AR
Finance costs BERA 7 7,505 868
Interest income FMEWA 5 (479) (298)
Investment income from available-for-sale AftHESREELRERA
financial assets (4,779) -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME BERZEEE BB
plant and equipment 6 1,068 99
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZ (W) /BE 6,31 (40,736) 1,908
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHRBESREE BB
financial assets 6 - 4415
Depreciation e 6 2,599 4223
Reversal of impairment of REMERERD
investment properties 6 (1,154) (2,307)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 6 7,400 =
Impairment of items of property, plant and ME MEREREEE ZRE
equipment 6 23 2,028
Impairment of goodwill EERE 6 689 =
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RN IERE 6 2,869 816
Write-off of other current assets H {th R E) & E M 3E 6 22,111 2,440
Gain on write-back of trade payable B 5 REMNFIAZ B 5 - (10,226)
Equity-settled share option expense IR ERER S 27 9,936 11,699
(839) (34,848)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/ (M) 12,141 (168)
Increase in amounts due from FEWE K& P RRIBE N
contract customer (61,207) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B SR (Em),/ /> (16,024) 63,744
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, HENRIE  RE KHE KR
deposits and other receivables (sm),/md (106,270) 425
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables 5 FEF ZIB KB =R M,/
OR4) 14,860 (37,876)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hin e IB R ET &R M/
and accruals OR4) 90,346 (12.990)
Cash used in operations KREmARSE (66,793) (20713)
Interest received B YFILE 479 -
Income taxes paid BTG (3,025) (827)
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETSMARENEFHE (69,339) (21,540)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HZ2017512R31BILFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i &E FTHRT TET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEBFEREME

ACTIVITIES
Interest received EYFLE 3,192 298
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEME BERZHER

equipment (26,895) (14,649)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, &Y% BEKZHEE 2

plant and equipment ks 78 3
Purchase of an investment property BEREME 13 (17,729) -
Additions to other intangible assets REEMBELEE 15 “4) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Yo B FE 12 PR 2 (3,220) =
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHLERE (229,800) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B Ff B 1 30 8,782 1,226
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR 31 112,976 (9,834)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGBAREREFHE (152,620) (22.956)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEEBHAERERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares to a shareholder 1] — % B R B 1TRX D FT{S 5B 26 226,419 156,180
Proceeds from exercising of share options 1T TR 7,955 =
Share issue expense BRAD BITR X (30)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRTERAMERIE 3,904 31,155
Proceeds from shareholders' loans RERERFEHRIE 25 88,000 175,000
Repayments of bank loans ERRITERN (3,389) (55,532)
Proceeds from pledged deposits EERERMERE - 6,388
Repayments of shareholders’ loan EERFRER (263,000) (20,043)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments B EHEHR SR A S5 - (20)
Capital contribution from non-controlling FERERFANTE

equity holders 2,633 10,594
Interest paid ERHE (7,661) (868)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEZDHEEEREFH 54,831 302,854
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE017F12A3NB LFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P&t TR TET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND BRe&RBR&ZEMEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (A2) 28 (167,128) 258358
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#IRE KR EEEY 306,398 50,258
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net NG BE 2 B B R B R R 219 (2,218)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRERREESEY
AT END OF YEAR 139,489 306,398
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND  RERREEEWHEH DM
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RRITES 22 139,489 306,398
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in HReRnEXMIBRENREEED
the statement of cash flows 139,489 306,398
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION . ARARKEER

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”), ETRBEXEXSRERERAR (X
formerly known as ASR Logistics Holdings Limited, is a limited liability company RE AR EORERERA
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor, f) —HARRASESEMKIZE

fR A A - B F B B3rd Floor,
Queensgate House, |13 South Church
Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, KY |-
1002 Cayman Islands ° 2N 2RI B /B H) E
BERMHABEEFER BRI

Queensgate House, | 13 South Church Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, KY |-
1002 Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
is Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | | | Queen's Road East, Waichai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and, the Company and its

subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of air

freight services in the wholesale market, air dome construction and operation,

investment and operation of the sports and entertainment related business in the

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TR EROSEINE -

ARBAR—EREEZERAF RALQH

FEMBAR (8

ERPB T HITH
RERRUARRPEAR
B REREERE MR

SR IAEE]) FER
TERG BER

HANE ([
LLARRAETS -

ERMEARZER

ARBEEMBLRARZFENT

Percentage of equity

attributable
Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company
registration  ordinary/registered VN
and business share capital EEERE DL
Name HRERL,/ 2B Direct Indirect Principal activities
2R AMREREE BB/ HERRE EE GF3 IERE
AQE Freight (HK) Limited (iv) Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100 Air freight solution services
BEEEBRAA (v) Bk 300000038 7T =EHRRE
AOE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited (notes(‘) (iv) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100 Air freight solution services
BrEREERE (RI)BR/ hE/PEAE  AREI00000007 EETRRS
(BHEEG)~ (v)
Pacific Empire International Limited (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China RMB7,500,000 = 100 Air freight solution services
(notes(i),(v))
BABREERE (RI)BR/ hE/HEAE  ARETS000007T EEIRRS
(HEG)~ (v)
OA Cargo Limited (iv) Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 = 100 Air freight solution services
OA Cargo Limited (iv) 30 100000078 7T ZEHRRHE
Sino Sky Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
REREBRAT B 100007 7T REER
LREEXCEXERERA A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR M EE
I.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d) . DARKEER (F)
Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd) ERMBLARZEN (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable
Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company
registration  ordinary/registered N
and business share capital EEERE DL
Name HRERL,/ BB Direct Indirect Principal activities
2R EMREEHE  EE/ZRRE E& GF3 TEEH
Beijing Sports Industry Group Limited (iv) Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 80 Investment holding
IRBEEXEEERAF (v B 10,000 7T REER
Xiang Tai Information and Science and PRC/Mainland China RMBI,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Technology (Shen Zhen) Limited* (notes (i),(iv))
H#AGERE ORI BERAR (M) (v) mE/mEAE  ARI0000007T BEER
Zhong Hu Sports and Cutture Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
(Beijing) Limited*, (notes (i),(\))
PEEEXLERE (LR BERAF hE/PEAE  ARH300000007 RERR
(FEEG) ~ (v)
Zhong Hu Yueyong (Shanghai) Sports PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Development Limited* notes (i),(i), (iv)
PEHX (LB BEERRAF hE/PEAE  ARHS50000007 RERR
(PG (i)~ ()
Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100 Air dome operation
(Beijing) Limited* (notes (i),(iv))
TEREEFRRE (LK) hE/HEAE  ARES0000007T REEE
BRAE (FEE) - M)
Shanxi Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100 Air dome operation
Development Limited* (notes (i),(ii),(iv))
WATEREEEERARAF hE/HEAE  ARES0000007T REEE
(BEEG) i)~ (v))
Shenzhen Xin Yi Heng Tong Industry Limited* PRC/Mainland China RMB3,260,000 = 5092 Trading of goods
(note (i),(iv))
AIMEREBEEERARF (M) (v) HE/mEAE  ARE32600007T EEAm
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

ARREEER (&)
FRMBERRZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable
Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company
registration  ordinary/registered N
and business share capital EEERE DL
Name HRRL/ BB Direct Indirect Principal activities
2R AMREREE BB/ HERRE EE GF3 IERE
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp. PRC/Mainland China RMB67,750,000 - 41.33 Air dome construction
(notes (i) (i), (v),(v))
IR OERRRERNRNBRAA hE/EAE  ARB677500007 AERE
(BEEG) ~ Gy~ ()~ )
Baiyue Changfeng Sports and PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 49 investment holding
Entertainment Development Limited
(notes (i), (ii),(iv),(v))
BHRERAEX(LRRERAT hE/REAE  AREI00000007T RARR
GEONORORO)
Jiangxi Zhong Hu Luyang Sports PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 65 Air dome operation
Development Limited* (notes (i),(ii)(iv))
TEPEEREFERYRERAH hE/PEAE  ARE50000007 REEE
(BEEG) i)~ (v))
Baiyue Bengku operation Sports and PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 = 294 Sports stadiums operation
Entertainment Development Limited
(notes (i),(ii),(iv),(v))
BRBEEEUCRRERAA hE/HEAE  ARE30000007T BEHER
(BEEG) (i)~ ()~ )
Zhonghu Changfeng Sports and PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 49 Sports stadiums operation
Entertainment (Bejjing) Development Limited
(notes (i),(ii),(iv),(v))
IRPERERE(LERARAR hE/HEAE  AR%I00000007T BEHEE
(BEEQ) ~ (i) (V) ()
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

I.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i) These subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies registered in PRC.

(i) These subsidiaries were registered during the year ended 31 December 2017.

(i) These subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31 December 2017.

(iv)  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of Ernst & Young

global network.

(v)  These subsidiaries are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and, accordingly are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company'’s control

over them.

* For identification purpose only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group.To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of the excessive length.
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for available-for-sale financial
assets, which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 3| December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

2|
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BAEREMBHMEEN BHEGE
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EMmmE - RAHEESREENRA
REBEFEN BEHRRTEELKAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and

continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,

without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resufting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets

or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the

current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7

BB G ERETRNER
Amendments to HKAS |2

BE G ERIE I 25RAIERT
Amendments to HKFRS 12 included in

Disclosure Initiative

REE

PIARETE

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

AT A BB & ER20145F E201 65 B H )
FRIGE 2 BRI BHRELENE I 25ROEFT

2|

R M

RRERE (F)
REEE(4)

WAEBERENBAR 2 EHE Ale
RIEBROZHMBARZEE (BHERH
B)REE: (HEMAZEERER ZRE
1B R (i 5t AR A RETIME 288 W
BRERNEHRENAAEE: ()
MERBRENAREBERTESE
KRR EAL - EAIE R EMEE
WaERNARERIGH D  RAE
EEERLERAEENEERFEER
AEEEEN T BEBRRIREEF -

BRTRRNBERKE
REBRARFE NI BRE B RFAA
TREFTRERBRE ER

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
BB IE L E
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities: Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS /2

REREMER B  BEB BN BFHEERE 12518 H
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B LEER

91



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described below:

(@

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities is provided in note 32(b) to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when assessing whether
taxable profits will be available against which it can utilise a deductible
temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax law restricts the
sources of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on
the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future
taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group as the Group has no deductible temporary differences or assets

that are in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12, other than those disclosure requirements in paragraphs BI0 to Bl6
of HKFRS 12, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate, or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate
that is classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group classified as
held for sale. The amendments have had no impact on the Group's financial
statements as the Group has no subsidiary classified as a disposal group held

for sale as at 3| December 2017.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 EEMAERREMNEBIMEREEL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been AEBWRELEHBERRTEAUAT

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2
BRI B RS ENE2RIER]
Amendments to HKFRS 4
BRI RS LR E4RNIER]
HKFRS 9
BRI RS LR E%R
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BRI RS LR EIRAIER]
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

BB RS ERFE 05k &

BT ERFE85 (201 1) MIEET

HKFRS 15

BEBUMBRELERNF 55

Amendments to HKFRS 15

BB MBS ERNFE ISHEAERT

HKFRS 16

BERMBRELRNE 63

HKFRS 17

BEMBRELERNE 75

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB G ERIFEBRANERT

Amendments to HKAS 40

BB G ERIF405 M EFT

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

EF (BRMBEREREZES)
—ZBEN

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

B8 (BRMBERE2ERES)
—REEBR

Annual Improvements 2014-20/6 Cycle

20144 E201 6 F BB F R 21

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

20159 220/ 74 18 B H F J& 24 1

BB E R AR LR REEFTE L
iR E &R -

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions’

URG BERGNALE 2 5B RAE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’
EREENFREERES R BT AR EENBFREEAEIHRBER
Financial Instruments’

THTAR

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

AR HEZIEFEAIIE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®

REZHABENAAEEL R AL EXTARE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
KEEFEHZHA

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
BB BHERRE ISTHKEEFEH.Z WA EE

Leases’

HE?

Insurance Contracts’

REg & A7

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures’
RBERAREETFZ R

Transfers of Investment Property’

REYREE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IEXGRENE

/

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®

P13 B 4 T B TE 1

Amendments to HKFRS | and HKAS 28!

BRI RELERE 5 R BB ST LR E28HEAERT

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS ||, HKAS 12 and HKAS 232

BRI RELERENN BEMBREERS 15 BESHERFI2HR
BA G ERIEBRAIER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

! No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is described below. Of those standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will
be applicable for the Group's financial year ending 31 December 2018 and are
expected to have a significant impact upon adoption. Whilst management has
performed a detailed assessment of the estimated impacts of these standards, that
assessment is based on the information currently available to the Group.The actual
impacts upon adoption could be different to those below, depending on additional
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Group at the
time of applying the standards and the transitional provisions and policy options

finally adopted.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that address three
main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee's tax obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee's tax obligation is classified in its entirety
as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction are modified, with the result that
it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification.
On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if they elect to adopt for all three
amendments and other criteria are met. The Group will adopt the amendments
from | January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and
all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
will adopt HKFRS 9 from | January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments against the opening
balance of equity at | January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed a
detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. Overall, the Group
expects no significant impact on its statement of financial position and equity except
for the effect of applying the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9. The Group
expects an increase in the loss allowance resulting in a negative impact on equity as
discussed below. In addition, the Group will implement changes in classification of
certain financial instruments. The expected impacts relate to the classification and

measurement and the impairment requirements and are summarised as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have a
significant impact on the classification and measurement of its financial assets.
It expects to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held

at fair value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

(b)  Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, lease receivables,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based
on an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach and record lifetime
expected losses that are estimated based on the present values of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore,
the Group will apply the general approach and record twelve-month
expected credit losses that are estimated based on the possible default
events on its other receivables within the next twelve months. The Group
does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have a significant on the

impairment of the financial assets.

Amendments to HKFRS [0 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However; the amendments are available for adoption

now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer
The principles in HKFRS |5 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either
a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective adoption is required on
the initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS |5 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS |5 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at | January 2018. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts that
are not completed before | January 2018.The Group expects that the transitional
adjustment to be made on | January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will
not be material. However; the expected changes in accounting policies, as further
explained below, will have a material impact on the Group's financial statements
from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment

on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS [5.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

The Group's principal activities consist of provision of air dome construction service,

provision of air freight service in the wholesale market, and trading of electronic

components. The expected impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 15 on the

Group are summarised as follows:

@

Provision of air dome construction service

The Group provides air dome construction services consisted of

manufacture, installation, and maintenance of air dome structures.

In preparing to adopt HKFRS 5, the Groups is considering the following:

()

Performance obljgations satisfied over time

Revenue from the construction contract is recognised on the
percentage of completion basis through input method. Under this
method, contract revenue is matched with the contract costs incurred
in reaching the stage of completion, including the costs incurred
for future activities on the contract, such as costs of construction
components that have not been delivered to the construction
sites or yet to be installed, used or applied during the contract
performance but which components have been made specially for the
contract. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group will recognise
the revenue over time when transfers control of construction
components or performs construction service and, therefore,
revenue from construction of air dome structures will be recognised
generally upon the delivery of construction components to the
construction sites or acknowledged by the customers. The Group
has estimated that when HKFRS 15 is adopted, revenue from the
provision of air dome construction service in 2017 will be decreased
by HK$20,368,000.

23

R M

ERMEREREMNE B HHEER
(%)
AEBRNEREBERRHERRZER
B REmGREZERGRERE
FII - RN BB AT RE LIS 155
HASENBHTERANT

@ REREZERL

ARBREBREE TREE
ERR BN RRRZERT

RERRKEEHBREENE
ISSRES AREZEATFR:

() R—REEAELHEY

B
BEA ﬁ?i%%ﬁﬂﬁ
BIRANERTT L BIHER -

BZAET  aHWaiE

BRERERMEENEN
AR (BIERE HRIES)
EENRAE BN E 4R
TBRA BRI T ERE
TibskimRE %  FRAE
AEERBBENFIR
EEBABUENREER TN
PN B BE e MR B
BB RELERE IS5 E K
SEBREEB T IE
BV BRITEERBE N
B AR Bt 2
ERBELEBEEN R —
BEREEBEINER
E TR P R B i
R REBERERNES
BRSS9k B
W0I7FRUERAERERS
) 2 2% 1 R 220,368,000/
7T|:o

LREE X EEEEERAT
B LEER

99



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

@)

Provision of air dome construction service (Cont'd)

(i)

Variable consideration

Some contracts with customers provide a deposit for quality
guarantee by 5% of the contract amount. Currently, the Group
recognises revenue from the air dome construction service measured
at the fair value of the considerations received or receivable, net
of returns and allowances and trade discounts. If revenue cannot
be reliably measured, the Group defers revenue recognition until
the uncertainty is resolved. Such provisions give rise to variable
consideration under HKFRS 15, and will be required to be estimated

at contract inception and updated thereafter:

HKFRS 15 requires the estimated variable consideration to be
constrained to prevent over-recognition of revenue. The Group
expects that application of the constraint will not result in changes
of the amount of revenue recognition under current HKFRS 15, as it
estimates that deposit for quality guarantee will be fully receivable at

the end of the guarantee period.

Provision of air freight service

The Group provides air freight service in the wholesale market. These

services are sold on their own contracts with customers. The Group

recognises service revenue at a point when the air freight service is

completed. The Group considers the requirements to recognise revenue over

the time under HKFRS [5 is similar to the current revenue recognition policy
of the Group. The group has determined that when HKFRS |5 adopted,

revenue from provision of air freight service in the wholesale market for

2017 will have no material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

©

Trading of electronic components

The Group trade electronic components. Revenue from such business is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer The group has determined that when HKFRS 15
adopted, revenue from the trading of electronic components for 2017 will

have no material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS |5 are more
detailed than those under the current HKAS [8. The presentation
requirements represent a significant change from current practice and will
significantly increase the volume of disclosures required in the Group's
financial statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in HKFRS |5 are
new and the Group has assessed that the impact of some of these disclosure
requirements will be significant. In particular; the Group expects that the
notes to the financial statements will be expanded because of the disclosure
of significant judgements made on determining the transaction prices of those
contracts that include variable consideration, how the transaction prices have
been allocated to the performance obligations, and the assumptions made
to estimate the stand-alone selling price of each performance obligation.
In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue
recognised from contracts with customers into categories that depict how
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are
affected by economic factors. It will also disclose information about the
relationship between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable segment. In 2017, the Group
continued testing of appropriate systems, internal controls, policies and

procedures necessary to collect and disclose and required information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

(e)  Other adjustments

In addition to the major adjustments described above, on adoption of
HKFRS 15, other items of the primary financial statements such as deferred
taxes, investments in associate, and share of profit of an associate, will be
affected and adjusted as necessary. Furthermore, exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations would also be adjusted. The recognition and
measurement requirements in HKFRS |5 are also applicable for recognition
and measurement of any gains or losses on disposal of non-financial assets
(such as items of property and equipment and intangible assets), when that
disposal is not in the ordinary course of business. However, on transition, the

effect of these changes is not expected to be material for the Group.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to
make lease payments (i.e, the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e,, the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 7. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS |7 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from | January
2019.The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 6 upon adoption and
is considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed
in note 34(b) to the financial statements, at 3| December 2017, the Group had
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately HK$100,964,000. Upon adoption of HKAS 6, certain amounts
included therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the amount of new
rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited
to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term leases, other
practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into before the date

of adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HKFRS 17, issued in May 2017, replaces HKFRS 4, which was brought in as an
interim standard in 2004. HKFRS 4 has given companies dispensation to carry on
accounting for insurance contracts using national accounting standards, resufting in
a multitude of different approaches. As a consequence, it is difficult for investors to
compare and contrast the financial performance of otherwise similar companies.
HKFRS 17 solves the comparison problems created by HKFRS 4 by requiring all
insurance contracts to be accounted for in a consistent manner, benefiting both
investors and insurance companies. Insurance obligations will be accounted for using
current values — instead of historical cost. The information will be updated regularly,

providing more useful information to users of financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 issued in January 2018 clarify that the scope exclusion of
HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is applied and does not include long-term interests that in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to which the equity
method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than
HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an
associate or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on | January 2019 and
will assess its business model for such long-term interests based on the facts and
circumstances that exist on | January 2019 using the transitional requirements in the
amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief from restating comparative

information for prior periods upon adoption of the amendments.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction or development, into or
out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management's
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of property held
at the date that it first applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property
to reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from | January 2018. The amendments are not

expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on how to determine the
date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the entity must determine the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration. Entities may apply the
interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either from the
beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation
or the beginning of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from | January 2018. The interpretation is not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether
an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an
entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative information. The Group expects
to adopt the interpretation from | January 2019.The interpretation is not expected

to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint

control over those policies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The Group's investments in associates and are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of

the Group's investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice
versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to
be accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and

proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held for sale, it
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest
is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain investment properties and short-term investments
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level | - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required (other than inventories, construction contract assets and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in

which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iify is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

or

parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i

)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group; and

the sponsoring employers of the post-employment benefit plan;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties (Cont'd)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (Cont d)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

@

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(Vi) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-
current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs

of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 25%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 12.5%
Computer equipment 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation

method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready

for use.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold interest
under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on the strait-line basis to allocate their cost to their

residual value over its estimated useful life.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if

the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangble assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at

least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont'd)

Patents and trademarks

Purchased patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and

are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3.7 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised

on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3-5 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to
the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the
lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and

subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value

through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd) REREMEREE (#)
Loans and receivables ENRENH

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in

finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets in listed
and unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market

conditions.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit
or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other

income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-for-sale
financial assets in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and

intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost
and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then

the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or; where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

S the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

J the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the

maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont'd)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective

interest rate (i.e, the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been

realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group

of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or

extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount
of the asset using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part
of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through the
statement of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, tax payable and

loan from shareholders.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

1 26 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

24

FTESHHERME (&)
CREEMNE (&)

JRHEZEBRE (A)

MERTEDBAAHENE  ARIAR
BRI IR & BB E AR — AR
fhRE - 23T ﬁ%ﬁ’w&@/ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&“%
HRAEEMAABEEETEZ Rt
B RBERBRERTERNREN
ERERR - RRA B ALERE
ENCHAREEERMERRAS
MEMMFIRT ARG - Uat BRERS
BeFBWATIERE WA D - kS

REEAABEBEEEN S LHES
BRESXBRRBLEN-—HENA
B REG TANBERREERER
Bm e

TREE

VEZ T

RS BRReME BRI BARA
REEFABENESHREE EXRE
BN AR AR IEE AR TAMLT
HTA(WEA) -

FAERABENSRAREBERR I
BEZRREE AHKREREBER K
Ao

AEENEBEEEREDENTEAR
Hi 08 BARAMRRER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as

follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, tax payable and loan from
shareholders are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement

of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices

less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets

similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

S in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion basis, as
further explained in the accounting policy for “Construction contracts”

below;

()  from the rendering of services, when the services are rendered;

(d)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Revenue recognition (Cont d) R (F)

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by ) MEBWA REFEEAERF
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts KL FRARAREMIANTE
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when AEMREREFH(MER)Z
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and et B RRS RAERRRES

A ERBREDFE 2 AR T AR
R R

() dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been ) BREMA IR WA FRA
established. TR R FER

Construction contracts BEEN

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and appropriate BHARREERAENANSEURT

amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive payments. Contract costs BEF RERIBRBECEESE-

incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an EEZAHNRRBEEENH DK
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads. A BEBTIREE LA ZFETE
RELHEER-

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised using the percentage BEBREEANNRERTIAD

of completion method, measured by reference to the proportion of costs incurred E (8 Ees Pﬁéiﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ\ﬁﬁa

to date to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract. BRI ER AL AIFE ) T AR

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by ﬁéﬁi‘ﬁﬂﬁﬂi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁ%;‘%ﬁ%ﬁj

management. Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less B BLSMEENSRAKAMB

recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as amounts due _\milJ/mfaﬁEu%Eﬁaiﬂﬁfﬁ
from contract customer. Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred BHEBA R ARKERNT P HIE-
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an a3 2 (SRR A2 S PR EE £ Y & KIRR

amount due to contract customers. MEBRBFEECBRERE - B

DR RENENE PR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render

services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November
2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model,

further details of which are given in note 27 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or

performance conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Share-based payments (Cont'd)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial

to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were

a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in

the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme™) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with

the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of

the central pension scheme.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer

withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing

rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
1 38 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

N (&)

FELZER ZERANE b2 Em e
REFEERREBREEA B HEEIN
R0 EEMEEKED EZEINE
B D A B AR

W BINEBEEMEMEE KRS
ELXMBEERBRERAGBELNIMNA
REERREBIEBENEEREER
B WK ERGE

REERERERME BIMERF
WRERERXRERE R RNBTER
BMEBTT - BINTBARNFRELN
REMRSNEARZF R T
ERBERET -

FESHE R AR

REARBNMBREFTEEEE S
EXERA AX BEMAEGENRE
SRR E I BRER &R 0 A Ef - ETA
BR EREIRBE-AREZERR
MEETENEE 1L - TR EBUARL AR
HXPEEESABRNERAEELER

o

#

ERREEEHBRE RERET2
HEON EEEEAEL THI BB BERE
FIERBEREATE 2 HIE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)
Judgements (Cont'd)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property
portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property,
and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be
sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2017 was
HK$29,138,000 (2016: HK$764,000). Further details are given in note [4.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable

discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and recognises movements
of their fair values in equity. When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. At 31
December 2017, there was no impairment losses has been recognised for available-
for-sale assets (2016: Nil). The carrying amount of available-for-sale assets was

HK$230,883,000 (2016: Nil).

Impairment of trade receivables and amounts due from contract customer

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising from the inability
of its customers to make the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers' creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of its customers was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance and its
future results would be affected. Further details are given in notes 17 and 18 to the

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences would impact the current income tax and

deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Percentage of completion of construction contracts

The Group recognises revenue and costs according to the stage of completion
of individual construction contracts. The stage of completion is estimated by
reference to the costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs of the relevant
construction contract. The percentage of completion method involves the use of
significant management judgement and estimates, and the revenue, cost and gross
profit realized on such contracts can vary from the Company's original estimates
because of changes in conditions. Management reviews and revises the estimates of

total contract costs for each contract as the contract progresses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B |RME

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 KeEHER
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on RERBNME  AEEUEER KRR
their products and services and has two reportable operating segments: (a) logistics AR ST N B A T M {E AT B ¥R
segment providing air freight services in the wholesale market; and (b) sport KEDE : @R EMSREZERYS
and entertainment segment investing in air dome business and engaging in the R AE: RO)RERBEBLNE
construction and operating of air dome and other newly initiated businesses. RERKERERERE M RAREHE
BRIRGEDE -
Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately EREREVERASERLENHNE
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance % AR ERD B kR BT EH R
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/ o NERFATIBE AT RHD EEF],
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss Eﬁ B ERTACAREHN, B
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except that B) T E -RBATEARER B
interest income, gain from disposal of subsidiaries, other investment income, gross BHEREEBRABEEERE
rental income, finance costs as well as head office and corporate expenses are B EL T RENEBA - HEH
excluded from such measurement. BARME HMRERA HEK
AR RERRRERER KRR
Yo
Sport and
Year ended 3| December 2017 Logistics entertainment Total
BEWI7FNABLEE Wik BERRL At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TR TR
Segment revenue 7 #B Wz
Sales to external customers RSN E P HE 7,824 148,999 156,823
Segment results DEEE 4,969 (41,163) (36,194)
Reconciliation: #Hi -
Interest income NS A 479
Gain from disposal of subsidiaries ekt NG 40,736
Other investment income Hipig &R A 4,779
Gross rental income R ONE 1,706
Corporate and unallocated expenses TEERRADERX (11,892)
Finance costs BB AR (7,505)
Loss before tax B Al B 18 (7,891)
Other segment information: Hivp HEHR:
Impairment losses recognised REBEHERZREEE
in profit or loss 16,289 9,403 25,692
Depreciation and amortisation E R 339 9,660 9,999
Capital expenditure BARX - 76,571 76,571
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, investment & BEXRAXBEABYME BERR

properties and intangible assets including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

B RENERBLEAE (BREKE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R E R M AL

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 4 REDHER (E)
Year ended 31 December 2016 Sport and
Logistics entertainment Total
HZE0I6FNRA3IALEFE Ui BAERR% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET
Segment revenue : SEBUR S
Sales to external customers AN P 86 & 74,144 8,374 82518
Segment results TEEE @1,179) (20816) (41,995)
Reconciliation: #Hik -
Interest income B WA 298
Other investment income Hipig &R A 2,123
Gross rental income R PN 1,927
Corporate and unallocated expenses PERRDERX (11,998)
Finance costs AR (868)
Loss before tax PR A& 18 (50513)
Other segment information: Hivn HEHR:
Impairment losses recognised RIER R RERE
in profit or loss 3,494 1,790 5,284
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 1,774 2,449 4,223
Capital expenditure BEARRAX - 15,052 15,052
Geographical information wEER

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group derived almost

all of its revenue from its operating entities located in Mainland China, Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan.

As at 3| December 2017, the Group's non-current assets were mainly located in

Mainland China, while in year 2016, the Group's non-current assets were mainly

located in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 4 REIHER (E)
Information about a major customer FRIEREFMNESR
During the year, revenue from a single external customer that individually accounted FA KB B BIE AN 5 B 48 A 1 0%k
for 10% or more of the Group's total revenue is as follows: PAFE)E =S IR F R ES I T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Customer A EPA 19,247 -
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W HfM AR KE
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for WHEFAEHEERNEREEFR
returns and trade discounts, and the value of services related during the year. (BRREREZFITMEE) &R
FEE-
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET
Revenue Iy &
Sales of goods EmiHE 6,705 8,338
Revenue of construction contracts BEAS W R 138,829 -
Rendering of services AR 11,289 74,180
156,823 82518
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P EEL
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd) 5 Was - Htt AR (F)

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET

Other income Ht A
Bank interest income RITHERA 479 298
Service income AR WA - 223
Investment income BERA 4,779 2,123
Gross rental income Hel ALz 1,706 1,927
Others Hith 842 670
7,806 524l

Gains 2=

Recovery of impairment of investment properties &% & ¥ % 5l B 1 121 [,154 2,307
Exchange gain BEE 5 e 11,737 —
Gain on write-back of trade payables B S RN FIE 2 B R E - 10226
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBRRZ W (EE) 40,736 (1908)
Others HA, 12,645 -
66,272 10,625
74,078 15,866
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

LOSS BEFORE TAX 6.
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEERBABEIEME, (GTA)
THISREER:
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P E TR TAT
Cost of inventories sold EHFEMA 6,195 8,065
Cost of construction contracts BRESHARAR 94,288 =
Cost of services provided BRERBA AR 9,423 65,865
Depreciation e 12,13 2,599 4223
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 15 7,400 -
Minimum lease payments REME HEREMNT
under operating leases 10,409 5530
Auditor's remuneration ZHE BN & 2,756 2,344
Employee benefit expenses EERMAX (TEEEEK
(excluding directors’ and TETBAEEHM (FHEE8) ) :
chief executive's remuneration
(Note 8)):
Wages and salaries TERE® 21,346 19,793
Equity-settled share option expense P 12 45 R AR A ) 2 6,643 7978
Pension scheme contributions RAREH IR 5923 2,703
33912 30,474
Impairment of goodwill BERE 689 -
Foreign exchange differences, net BE N ERE R (11,737) 1,039
Impairment of items of property, W% WEKEREBER ZRE
plant and equipment 12 23 2,028
Recovery of impairment REMERERMD
of investment properties 13 (1,154) (2,307)
Impairment of trade receivables B2 RWHIERE 2,869 816
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HENMHEESREECEHE
financial assets - 4415
Impairment of other receivables Hfth UK IE R B 22,111 2,440
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE BEREEERE BB
plant and equipment 1,068 99
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRR 2 (Ka), /B8 31 (40,736) 1,908
Research and development costs DRI 6,391 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKARZ AT :
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and otherloans ~ SR/TE - B N EME TS 30 239
Interest on shareholders' loans BRERE AR 7475 626
Interest on finance lease liabilities MEMERENS - 3
7,505 868
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION 8 EERIERTHASHMH
Directors” and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to AFERFEERTETHABHMIBRE L
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies MR A FE R EEBIE383(1) @) (b)
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits OROERRR (KBEESM=EHR)
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: RBIE2E BB T
Group
FEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Fees e 1,740 1,670
Other emoluments: H it B & -
Equity-settled share option expense PR AR R 3,294 3721
5,034 5,391
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8 EEBERFETHAESETM (&)
During the year 2017, certain directors were granted share options, in respect WIFE BETEEHHESRASEM
of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, RUNRBREARR A BRE SIER
further details of which are set out in note 27 to the financial statements. The fair RERRAE - s — D BRI R M=
value of such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting 7 ZEREBHRATEERRTHEALZ
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the BREZAABEENEHAMEE
financial statements for the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief MRAFEFARBREZEEE A
executive's remuneration disclosures. EXEERFETHAEHERE
A o
(a)  Independent non-executive directors @ BYUFHTEES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were AEEENBIFNTES M
as follows: EMT:

Equity-settled

share option

Fees expense Total
RESHE
ik FBIRER #st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERr TERx TER
2017 20175

Independent non-executive directors B HTEE
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming LERLE 120 183 303
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMEE 120 183 303
Mr. Pan Lihui BAERLE 120 183 303
Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith (Note (i)) A S A (PR ) 120 183 303
480 732 1,212
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R E R M AL

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

8 EERFRTBAESHMA)

(a)  Independent non-executive directors (Cont’d) @) BUFHTES (#F)
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expense Total
BiEEE
ik FE BRI a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET
2016 20165
Independent non-executive directors B HTEE
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming ZLERLE 120 207 327
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FEMEE 120 207 327
M Pan Lihui i AVA ¥ 120 207 327
Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith (Note (i)) A XA (HEEQ)) 10 207 317
470 828 1,298
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Executive directors and the chief executive

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8

R M

ESRTETHRABEHM (&)
(b) BTEERFETHBAE

Salary, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
Fe 2R hE&E Bhe
we EFE BRERX HE [:3 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THER THT T
217 WI7E
Executive directors HITEZS
Mr. Hu Yebi HEELE 180 - 183 - 363
Mr. Niu Zhongje bEERE 180 - 183 - 363
Mr. Zhu Shixing (Note () AR 4 (W) 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ka Tak (Note () HEEEE (M) 180 - 183 - 363
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe (Note (v)) RERLE (KEy) 180 - 183 - 363
Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Note (vi) #1248 %4 (M) 180 - 1,830 - 2010
MrTsui Ngai, Eddie (Note (vi)) RS (M3 (vi)) 180 - - - 180
1,260 - 2562 - 3822
2016 2016F
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Hu Yebi HEELE 180 - 207 - 387
Mr. Niu Zhongje GEEEE 180 - 207 - 387
Mr. Zhu Shixing (Note () MICELE () 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lam KaTak (Note (i) HEEEE (Wi() 180 - 207 - 387
Ms. Leung Pui Man (Note (ii)) 2R T (M) 69 = = = 69
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe (Note (ii)) REmLE (M) 165 = 207 = n
Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Note (iv)) #2854 (M) 165 - 2,065 - 2230
MrTsui Ngai, Eddie (Note (v)) R4 (BsE ) 8l - - - ]
1,200 - 2893 - 4093
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(b)  Executive directors and the chief executive (Cont'd)

Note ii  The director was appointed on 25 January 2016.

Note i The director was resigned on 18 May 2016.

Note ii. ~ The director was appointed on 25 January 2016.

Note iv:  The director was appointed on 25 January 2016, and elected as the
chairman of the board and appointed as the chief executive officer of the

company on 8 April 2016.

Note v:  The director was appointed on 20 July 201 6.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year include one director (2016: one
director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2016: four) highest paid employees

who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

8.

EERFRTBAEHM (&)
b) BTESRFETRAR(A)

Mizi: ZBEEMN2016F1A25H
BRI

MizEi: ZBEEM2016F5818H
BT

Bskii: ZBEEM2016F1A25H
BRI

Mizkiv: ZBEER016F A2SH
BRI Wr2016F4A8H
BEREFTSFRIES
EARRBEZEETHRA

5o

MizEv: ZBEEM2016F7820H
EEE-

RER VEEEFTRITHABNE
H A B REEAFHAOLT -

LEREHFHMES
AEELARRFNEERE—RES
(0165 —REF) REFM2F1B5
B LS o RBP4 (20165 : I
ZIRRBAFEESHMER (KX
FREETHEIRTHAR) ZFHBED
T

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RENEDNZE 2,267 3,110
Equity-settled share option expense iEEEERERS 340 315
Pension scheme contributions RIRS AR 187 138
2,794 3563
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d) 9

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

R M

LEBEHHES (&)
FRATHRE 2 FEFRIFERTH
ABZREFMEEBHBANMT

Number of employees

EEHE
2017 2016
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 % 7T = 1,000,000 7T 4 3
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 7T - !
4 4

INCOME TAX 0.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits during the year.

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC corporate income
tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25%, except for one PRC

subsidiary which is entitled to a preferential tax rate at 5%.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to 9% on
the taxable income above MOP32,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,100)
but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$292,000), and at a fixed
rate of 12% on the taxable income above MOP300,000. For the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, a special complementary tax incentive was provided
to the effect that tax free income threshold was increased from MOP32,000 to
MOP600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3 1,100 to HK$584,000).

Fr{8 %t
BERR B RIS BT R B
FIHR165% (20164 : 165% ) HIBL = 542
B

AEBERFEAM AL E BB ATE D
EFEH RERRCEREHHEER
25% E—EH BB AR ZA 5% 2 &
Bk

SR PR 7 T Bt = 732,000 P9 7T (48
&R 4931,10078 7T ) 18 1 72300,000/2 F9
7T (F8E R #9292,00078 7T ) KO JE 3R 1 I
AR TIREI%H RET MM Rk
78 183000002 P 7T 2 FE SR Bt R A 1R [E
JE TR 1 2% 5t o & 220179 ] 20165
2A3IB EFE  AEEERME I
FHEEE - A ERBM AR R H
32,0003 P9 7 1 Z600,0002 FI 7T (&
RKI31,1007% JT 1% 584,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R E R M AL

10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 0. FriSH (&)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Current — Hong Kong EH-F5
Charge for the year FAXH 7,848 211
Current — Mainland China BH-hE RN
Charge for the year FAZH 5,006 —
Current — Others BHI-HA
Charge for the year FAXH 27 1214
Current — Elsewhere BH-HitE
Charge for the year FAXH - -
Deferred (note 19) BRI (BHEE19) (2,638) 180
Total tax charge for the year FARIBX HEHE 10,243 1,605
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INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the statutory

rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:

FriGH (&)

R M

ERRBRFABRRAR B REATD
P A Al PR B R sk B AR R R TE
REFEZHERT BRERREFE

ZHBERXZHENT
Mainland
2017 Hong Kong China Others Total
20175 Bt B A it Hite e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
T THERx THET TR
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ALER, (EE) 37,602 (34,659) (10,834) (7.891)
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEREFENTE 6,204 (8,665) (1,312) (3.773)
Lower tax rate for specific provinces 45 Bl & {1 2k & 4 #8 & 1Y
or enacted by local authority PR X - (3,200) - (3,200)
Income not subject to tax BRTBA (9,185) (2,586) (430) (12,201)
Expenses not deductible TEHABFEX
for tax purpose 4,941 1,226 7 6,174
Tax losses utilised from BERFACBANERSE
previous periods (150) - (197) (347)
Tax losses not recognised AERZ BHIBEHE 6,038 15,593 1,959 23,590
Tax charge at the Group's BRERERBEAEZ
effective rate BB 7,848 2,368 27 10,243
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 0. FRiGHL (&)
Mainland

2016 Hong Kong China Macau Others Total
20165 &  FEAM RF Hith st
HKP000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HKF000

FHET FET FHET FHET FET
Profit/(loss) before tax B AR, (1) (37,570) (21,560) 10,133 (1,516) (50513)
Tax at the statutory tax rates REED R ENHE (6,199) (5,390) 1216 (315) (10688)
Income not subject to tax HEBBIRA (57) - @) - (64)

Expenses not deductible NAHBFE X

for tax purpose 3216 - 23 776 4015
Tax losses not recognised AERZBBER 2944 5221 — 177 8342
(96) (169) 1232 638 1,605

1. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of |,183,011,597 (2016: 1,041,282,049) in issue during

the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts presented for
the years ended 3| December 2017 and 2016 in respect of a dilution as the impact
of the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per

share amounts presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 % BERRE
Leasehold Furniture Office ~ Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures ~ equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF HEZE BARKE HORE EERG g ERIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Tén  TErn  TEx Tér  TEn  TEx
31 December 2017 R0I7E 128318
At 3 December 2016 and at R20I6E12A31B
| January 2017: RwEIRI8:
Cost AR - 13,009 2,898 978 1,185 8,075 - 26,145
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and impairment - (2694) (1,188) (46) (993) (3,607) - (8528)
Net carrying amount REFE - 10,315 1710 932 192 4468 - 17617
At I January 2017, net of ROITEIAI
accumulated depreciation R 2 FERAE
and impairment - 10,315 1710 93 192 4468 - 17617
Addtions AE - 1,269 197 259 Ml - 30,008 3,074
Acquisition of subsidiaries KERERR
(note 30) (K3i0) 1377 603 25 m 128 409 - 3515
Disposals e - (9,888) (1,398) (675) (266) (3.943) - (16,170)
Depreciation provided ERGHRIE
during the year (47) (506) (154) (252) (97) (389) - (1,445)
Impairment (note 6) I (Htske) - - - (1) (1) - - )
Transfers gz 5917 - (83) - - - (23.563) (17,729)
Exchange realignment [E 5 & 353 107 3 63 26 36 pil 907
At31 December 2017,netof 120176 124318 -
accumulated depreciation TR EHHERAR
and impairment 7,600 1,900 528 1,089 312 581 6,736 18,746
At 31 December 2017 ROI7EIA3IR
Cost A 7730 5,058 1784 1,557 1,093 1,542 676 25500
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAE
and impairment (130) (3,158) (1,256) (468) (781) (%1) - (6754)
Net carrying amount R HE 7,600 1,900 528 1,089 3 581 6,736 18,746
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B A
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 12 ¥ -BERSKE(F)
Leasehold Furniture Ofice ~ Computer Motor  Construction
Buidings improvements  andfitures  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
By HERE KARKE BOARE  EERA nE ERIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tér  TEr  TEx  TEr  TEr TR TEn  TEx
31 December 2016 WI6E12A3IA
At 31 December 2015 and at RIS 128317
I January 2016; Ra0l6E 1418
Cost AR = 889 1217 170 1661 847! - 12408
Accumulated depreciaonand ~ ZFTERIA(E
impairment - (863) (1,192) (60) (1,264) (2392) - (5771
Net carrying amount REFE - % B 10 397 6079 - 6637
At | January 2016,net of RWI6FIAI
accumulated depreciation R 2 ERAE
and impairment - 26 25 110 397 6079 - 6,637
Addtions AE = 12,190 1686 82 253 = - 14951
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - - - 18 8 - - ]
Disposals e - - - 4 (69) ) - (102)
Depreciation provided ERiHRIE
during the year = (I15) () (12) (226) (1562) = (1916)
Impairment (note 6) I (Htske) - (1,790) - 1) (236) - - (2008)
Exchange realignment [E 5 & = 4 = = (10) (20) - (26)
At 3] Decermber 2016, netof — M2016E12A31R -
accumulated depreciationand B EFATE RAE
impairment = 10315 1710 932 192 4468 = 7617
At 31 December 2016 R016%12A318
Cost KA - 13009 269 978 1,185 8075 - 214
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and impairment = (2694) (1188) (46) (993) (3607) = (8528)
Nt carrying amount E#E - 10315 1710 932 192 4468 - 17617
& Impairment of property, plant and equipment for the years ended 31 December 2017 * BE0I7FER016F12A3IBIEFE

Y% BEERERECRERR
mREMEERERD [Et X

and 2016 were recognised in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

INVESTMENT PROPERTY REM=E
2017 2016
At cost model BRAEAGE HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET
Carrying amount at | January RIAIBZERHEE 87,000 87,000
Addition NE 17,729 =
Reversal of impairment R ERZAE 1,154 2,307
Depreciation* HrE* (1,154) (2.307)
Disposal HE (87,000) -
Exchange realignment P& 5, 8 938 -
Carrying amount at 31 December RI2A31 B 2 BRmEE 18,667 87,000
& Depreciation of investment property for the year ended 31 December 2017 and * BE20178R2016F12A3IBEEE

2016 was recognised in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for
future repairs and maintenance. The Group's investment property referred to a self-
established sports stadium located in Mainland China. The investment property was
leased to a third party under an operating lease. The book value of the investment
properties was HK$ 18,667,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$87,000,000).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included on page 204

of the annual report.

ZRENEZHECRESBER
Hit2EmR s RS (R N

27
s ©

R2017F 128318 AR B ERER
HARREBRERESHNET  AEEH
BEMEEMRTEAMN B EEBES
EREMERBLEMERETE=
F R EMER017FNRAIBNET
18 /318,667,007 7T, (2016%F : 87,000,000
BIL) °

REBREMENE— P BHNER
048 o

LREE X EEEEERAT
B LEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M A

14.

GOODWILL 14 HE
HK$'000
THET

At | January 2016: R2016FI A8 :

Cost ZEN 1,187

Accumulated impairment RERE (1,187)
Net carrying amount FREHE -
Cost at | January 2016, net of accumulated impairment R2016F1 A1 B ZBA - Hikk RETRIE -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B A A 764
At 31 December 2016 R2016F124318 764
At 31 December 2016: P2016F12A318 :

Cost XX 1951

Accumulated impairment ZRE (1,187)
Net carrying amount RREFE 764
Cost at | January 2017, net of accumulated impairment R2017F 1 BIB Z A HikR REHRE 764
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) Wb —FE B B 2 =) (BT &E30) 29,138
Disposal of a subsidiary & —RHB AT (75)
Impairment during the year FARE (689)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2017 R2017F 12831 B 2 A REREE 29,138
At 31 December 2017: 72017124318 :

Cost XX 29,138

Accumulated impairment ZETRE -

Net carrying amount AREFE 29,138
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the following cash-
generating units (the “CGU") for impairment testing:

J Air dome construction CGU; and
J Trading products CGU; and

J Entertainment CGU

Air dome construction CGU

The recoverable amount of the Air dome construction CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12.5%. The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the Air dome construction unit beyond the five-year
period is 3.0%, which is the same as the long term average growth rate of the air
dome construction industry.

Trading products CGU

In 2016, the recoverable amount of the Trading products CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. During the year ended 3| December 2017, the
impairment of goodwill of trading products CGU was HK$689,000 (2016: Nil).

Entertainment CGU

In 2016, the recoverable amount of the Entertainment CGU was determined
based on a value in use calculation. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the

impairment of goodwill of entertainment CGU was Nil (2016: Nil).

R M

e ()

B E R
BREFRAHRENEESEEAT
ReELEN ([REEEEM])#ET
VERIEREEEE

- RRRERSELEMN K

- EBEEmRBSELEMN K
© RERSELEN
REERECELEN

RERERSEAEM 2 TNESED
BEFAESREEEMIERERF
B BRERKE RERERAL
ﬁﬁﬁ{gﬁﬁxﬁﬁ}iﬁ Eﬁi/}\u%ﬁ/ﬂ”%
RAZIBEEE125% - HERFHMEZ
REREBMRERERACEREA
30% BRERETENRBTHER
KR -

EEERTETELEN

W06 BEEEMRAEEEBELM 2
EEBNENCRAEEFEMETE &
ENI7ENAALFER BEERR
& E 4 BN 2 7B R B /689,000% TT
(2016%F - £&) o

BRAELELEN

W0I6F REFSELEM 2 AIRESE
BHERGERABEFEMEE BZE
WI7FNA3BLFEE BEEEMRE
EEBMWESERE (016F &) -

LREE X EEEEERAT
B LEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

4. GOODWILL (Cont’d)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)
Entertainment CGU (Cont'd)

In 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to Air dome construction cash-

generating units is as follows:

BE (&)
HERENS (&)

BRALELEN (F)

R017F PEEREREREELE
I BREENT :

Air dome
construction
CGU
RIRZEE
ReELEN
HK$'000
THET

Carrying amount of goodwill BEREE

29,138

In 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating

units is as follows:

R016F PEEZEREEELEMT
HEREENT:

Trading products Entertainment

CGU CGU

BEEMm fREE

ReELBU REELEN

HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TAT

Carrying amount of goodwil HEREE 689 75

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the Air dome construction
CGU as of 31 December 2017.The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment

testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management determined budgeted gross margin based

on past performance and its expectations for market development.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

GOODWILL (Cont’d) 14 H8 (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont d) BERENR (&)
Entertainment CGU (Cont'd) BEFLELEN (F)
Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks HTHE-MERZTRERBRBATTER
relating to the relevant units. KRRMEBEM 2 FERR -
Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the BRE-HENFHRERZREREN
five-year period are based on the estimated growth rate of each unit taking into ERZEREDREREMANGIER
account the industry growth rate, past experience and the medium or long term R EHEEREREELENN
growth target of each CGU. TEEER BALBREPREHER
BIR&IES -
The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of Air REZEMGERNHTEMRME TR
dome construction, discount rates and growth rates are consistent with external KRERREINPERR—B -
information sources.
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 5. HtuE&E
Patents  Trademark Software Total
=R L L Mgt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt TET TET TET TET
At 3| December 2016 20165 12315 - - - -
Cost at | January 2017, R2017FIRIBZ
net of accumulated AN HIBR 25t
amortisation B - - - -
Additions NE - _ 4 4
Acquisition of a subsidiary el NG 30 39,533 1,130 315 40978
Amortisation provided FRFTIR#EH
during the year 6 (7,123) (204) (73) (7,400)
Exchange realignment BE 5 8 B - - 14 14
At 31 December 2017 2017124318 32,410 926 260 33,596
At 3| December 2017 20175 12H318
Cost BN 39,533 [,130 553 41216
Accumulate amortization 2Rt (7,123) (204) (293) (7,620)
Net carrying amount AREFE 32,410 926 260 33,596
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES le. FENRE BEREMEWR
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Prepayments B 0A 20,906 8413
Deposits Be 7,041 9,883
Other receivables H b fE Y B 30,253 15,198
58,200 33,494
Less: Non-current portion R EE )
Deposits and prepayments He RBNFIE 14,778 9,794
43,422 23,700
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included B E ARBEINARRE 4584
in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of BIEHE RLE & BT B B AR08k
default. FEWRIB B -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RM A

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 7. BEEHN
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Amounts due from contract customer FEW A X1 P F0E
Current RED 54,094 =
Non-current R B 11,590 =
65,684 -
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less B EE £ & #IRK AN M2 45 B 7R 4 AR
recognised losses to date BEHERER 313,338 -
Less: Progress billings W EE T (247,654) -
65,684 -
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18 ESZEKFEREWEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Trade and bills receivables B 5 I W TE K R R R iR 61,810 8,484
Impairment E (4,594) (1,832)
57,216 6,652
Non-current IERB 5,376 =
Current ik 51,840 6,652
57,216 6,652

The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; (i) credit terms of 30

to 90 days; and (iii) the terms of the respective construction contracts. The carrying

amounts of trade and bills receivables approximated their fair values. The maximum

exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting period is the fair values of the

trade and bills receivables.

AEENHEEFEROERMK ()30
EHEED: R(iNBEANZEZEH
PRIETT - & 5 EUGRIE R IR 1R 2 IR
HESREAABERE RBREHRE
B2 BEANEERRAE S EURIE R E
WEBZRABE

LREE X EEEEERAT
—E-LEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 18 ESRUREREWEE (&)
An age analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the reporting H 5 R IE RN E BN REARR
period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows: BREERHRABREEB Rk TN
T:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiERx TET
Within | month & A AR 9,070 5212
| to 2 months | 2218 A 3279 577
2 to 3 months 2ZE3E A 8,972 201
Over 3 months B iE3ME A 35,895 662
57,216 6,652
An age analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not individually nor W EE R RERRRENE FEK
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: HEREREBENREANET
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiERx TET
Neither past due nor impaired SRR BTN AR E 360 5212
Within | monith past due BELRIEA 45,302 577
| to 2 months past due #H) | 2208 A 293 201
2 to 3 months past due AENZE3EA 2,052 423
Over 3 months past due o HA s 31E A 9,209 239
57,216 6,652
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number RARBHTAREN YIRS A E
of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of defautt. Based W AT RN R HEOTRES - 1R
on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no BRELR NARNESAR ZF
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not EABARELRERE DEGEEX
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully VELREXEE BARDERTE
recoverable. 2l
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

DEFERRED TAX 9. BB
The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows: EEHEEEREERIEEE L ZEM
N
Deferred tax assets: BEERIBEE
Fair value Depreciation
adjustments allowance in
arising from excess of
acquisition of related
subsidiaries depreciation Total
W EEH 2§
Edz HBUHBEFE
AREERAE ZIERR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
TET TET TET
At | January 2016 R2016F 1R I1H = = =
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FARNBEANEFTA
to profit or loss during the year (HFR) 2 BIETRIH - - -
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2016F12A318 &
31 December 2016 and 2017F 1 A 1B ZEERIR
| January 2017 BERRE - - -
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss AU B B B AEt A2
at the acquisition date ERERIE 701 = 701
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRARBEANGFTA
profit or loss during the year ($0BR) 2 EFEFH IR (701) 769 68
Gross deferred tax assets at 2017512831 B 2 EEFIE
31 December 2017 BEMRR - 769 769
LREEXCEXERERA A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

19. DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d) 19. EEEBE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities: EERIEGE:
Fair value Depreciation
adjustments allowance in
arising from excess of
acquisition of related
subsidiaries depreciation Total
KEHELF
Bz HHEREFE
AREEHRAE ZIERR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T TET
At | January 2016 R20I6FE 1R IR = 53 53

Deferred tax charged to profit or loss S AR B & WK 2 ELEFR B

during the year - 180 180
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 3| 20165128318 K&
December 2016 and | January 2017 20171 A1 B ZELFE
BERE - 233 233

Deferred tax recognised during to year FAEDBARELTHIE

(note 30) (PfE30) 10,166 - 10,166
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss 5 IR B & AT A2 BELER A

during the year (note 10) (P3EI0) (1,832) 37) (1,869)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 201781283182

31 December 2017 REREREAE 8,334 196 8,530
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20.

21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d) 9.

The Group has tax losses of HK$129,277,000 (2016: HK$123,646,000). Except for
tax losses amounting to HK$39,853,000 (2016: HK$71,422,000) that can be carried
forward indefinitely to offset against future taxable income, the Group's remaining

unrecognised tax losses will expire in one to ten years.

R RS E

BN (4F)
AEBABIBEE29,277,000% T
(2016%F : 123,646,000/ 7T ) ° B ] R
HARE S AR SE R SR IE AR BRI 2 B IR S
1839,853,000/% 7T (2016%F : 71,422,000/
TC) AN ARG BRI R R HE SR TR I 4R
R—Z2+F5H-

INVENTORIES 0. 7&

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHT
Materials for construction contracts BEA N 2RI # 3,015 -
Finished goods 2Pt 415 521
3,430 521

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 2. AtHESREE
2017 2016
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FTHERT FAT
Bond investments, at fair value BARERE BRANER (a) 108,166 =
Bank product investments, at fair value #R1TEmMRE R AAEBE () 122,717 -
230,883 -

LRRE X EERMERA T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

21.

22.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd) 2. AHEESREE (&)

(@  The amount represented bonds purchased through over the counter @ ZREREBHIXFITEEE
markets and classified as non-current available-for-sale financial assets. During RABRIIERBIUELESHE
the year; the investment income recognised in the statement of profit or loss ENEF - FRN REBERXER
and the fair value loss recognised in the statement of other comprehensive R E KA RRE A2 B =
income or loss in respective of the Group's bond investments amounted ~ERERAREESFREZ
to approximately HK$3,235,000 (2016: Nil) and HK$504,000 (2016: Nil), NABEEED A A43235000
respectively. A 7T (2016%F : &) }2504,00078 7T

(20165 : &)

(b)  The amount represented bank products designated as available-for-sale b) ZREBECRAHLEEHE
financial assets with original maturity within three months when acquired. EARKESRARS=EAA
During the year, the investment income in respect of the Group’s bank HERITEm - FR - RNERRAE
product investments recognised in the statement of profit or loss amounted REBAEERTERREZR
to HK$1,544,000 (2016: Nil). BB 15440007 7T (20165

&)
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2 RERBTER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTHEER 139,489 306,398

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$81,858,000 (2016:
HK$38,416,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

The bank balance are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.
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23.

24.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An age analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

B EZRNRERENRE
RBEHR REFFRAGELHNES

N RBRENREOREINOT :

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Within | month & A AR 17,056 5591
| to 2 months | 221E A 3,323 424
2 to 3 months 2Z31E A 1,192 232
Over 3 months MEA M E 10,675 1,955
32,246 8,202

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on

terms of 30 to 60 days upon receipts of suppliers’ invoices.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

HIRNFRBNENRBEATTER—
AR EEH B R RIZ0E0H A%

fio

4 HttENRUERETER

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERr THET
Accruals st B H 21,371 22454
Deposits received Bire 1,517 3,326
Other payables Ho At 1< 1A 1,046 792
Total a5t 23,934 26572
Less: non-current portion R ) (600) (774)

23,334 25,798

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months.

Hit A RA/ T BLAFMEAZF

BHIR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

25. LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS 25.

The balance in 2016 represented the loan granted from Hollyview International
Limited, the second largest shareholder of the Company wholly owned by a director
of the Company, to support the Group's operating working capital. The loan was
unsecured and repayable on demand, and was repaid in 2017. During this year, the
Group gained loans from Vision Finance Active Investment Limited, Vision Finance
Group Limited and W Capital Management Limited, who are shareholders of the
Company, amounting to HK$88,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.8% per annum, to

support the Group's operating working capital. The loans were paid off before the

BRER

WICFERBADAE - AKRR
Hollyview International Limited ( F 75 A 7]
—REZ2EHR)RENER /K
EENEEESREH -EXRE
B R RRBRER WD R20I17FE
B RAREE  REEBVision Finance
Active Investment Limited* &% € Bi&
B QA RW Capital Management

end of 2017. Limited (¥ &R R RIRER ) & T E =X
/54.8%7 B 788,000,000/ 7T » AARE
M 2B E &R IF BHE R2017F
HERANMER -
26. SHARE CAPITAL 2 RRA
Shares &)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Authorised: ETE
4,000,000,000 (2016:4,000,000,000) ordinary 4,000,000,0008%
shares of HK$0.005 each (2016%F = 4,000,000,0008% )
9 IR TE 1E0.005/% 7T K 38 % 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHR:
1,296,792,.900 (2016 1,168,230,000) ordinary 1,296,792,900/%
shares of HK$0.005 each (2016%F : 1,168,230,0000% )
I TE 1E0.00575 7T K i 388 i 6,484 5,841
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26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)
Shares (Cont'd)

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows:

26.

R M

B (&)
B (&)

ARBRBAZEHRNT :

shares in issue

Number of

Share capital

BT
RGO EE &S
HK$'000
FTAT
At | January 2016 R2016F1 /18 937,860,000 4,689
Issue of shares BTG 230,370,000 1,152
At 3| December 2016 and | January 2017 20165128318 R2017F1 A 1R l,168,230,000 5841
Issue of shares (Note (a)) BT (M) 122,000,000 610
Share options exercised (Note (b)) 1TE R R (FIsE (b)) 6,562,900 33
128,562,900 643
At 3| December 2017 R2017F 128318 1,296,792,900 6,484

Notes:

The Company and Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
(the “Subscriber”) entered into the subscription agreement pursuant to which the
Company had agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber had agreed to subscript for
122,000,000 shares at the subscription price of HK$1.88 per share. The net proceeds
received from the subscription of shares were approximately HK$228,330,000, after
deducting relevant expenses of HK$1,030,000, and the net subscription price was
HK$1.867 per placing share. The nominal value of these shares of HK$610,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of HK$$227,720,006 was credited to share

premium.

The Company issued ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of share options by a
director and the employees of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.764 per
share. A total of 6,562,900 shares were issued with a net proceeds of approximately
HK$5,014,000 received by the Company, of which approximately HK$4,981,000 was
credited to share premium, and approximately HK$33,000 was credited to share

capital.

AAR S EEERFEEEBBR
NE([RBFILRERZ B
b ARRERERE BT MR
BHERERERIBTZREE
8122000000017 - RIDRES
T8 2 F 15 5RIEF 88 49 /228,330,000
JC (&A@ 7 2 1,030,000/ 7T )
REFREELATREERD 8678
T %ERGD 2 RHEEESI0000% T
B et AR - M1227,72000678 7T 2 £
BEFARNDERE-

ARBREBEAAR —BEERESR
BEERO7TAB T ZTEEITEER
BmMBTLEAR -ARREETARL
6,562,900/ A% 17 I W BR FT 15 SRS 5E
#)5,014,0007% 7T+ E A 494,981,000/
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27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company's directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, the Company's shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder in the
Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 3 December 201 | and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
| 2-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting,

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are

subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 2| days from the date
of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a vesting period of one to three vears and ends on a date
which is not later than five years from the date of offer of the share options or the

expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier:
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27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) 7. R (&)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be BREZTEERESEE ETEE
less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares RUATZEBEE : (AR AR NER
on the date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing RELHBABEB A WE: KA
price of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the RAROHREEZHN AR AERXSA

date of offer.

MR FHRmE -

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at BRI N TR A AR B S AR

shareholders” meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

RREREZIER -

AT BFAREREHRITEZBR

W
2017 2016
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
e N1
TEE BRERE TEE  BRERE
HK$ '000 HK$ 000
per share per share
BRET TR BRET T’
At | January RIAIR 0.899 66,244 - -
Granted during the year FREEN - - 0.852 68,180
Forfeited during the year FRNE R 1.384 (9,680) 0.764 (1936)
Exercised during the year FNEITRE 0.764 (6,563) = =
At 31 December R12A318 0.764 50,001 0.899 66,244
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options FRITEBREES B NETHRE
exercised during the year was HK$1.96 per share (2016: No share options were BERI96ETT (20165 : WEITFRER
exercised). )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M A

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) 7. BRERE (F)
The exercise price and exercise period of the share options outstanding as at the RREBRR  mARTEERECTEE
end of the reporting period are as follows: RATHEEAT :
2017
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
EREHE fTEE" TR
'000 HK$
per share
TR FRET
note (a)
50,001 0.764 Bt (a)
2016
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE 1TlE(E* T8
‘000 HK$
per share
TR BRET
note (a)
56,564 0.764 @)
note (b)
9,680 1.384 HEIG)
66,244
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or * iRz TR AR e H R EITA

bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@)  First 30% of the options granted was vested in one year from 8 April 2016, second
40% of the options granted will be vested in two years from 8 April 2016 and
remaining 30% of the options granted will be vested in three years from 8 April 2016.
Upon the lapse of the vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 8 April
2026.

(b)  First 30% of the options granted was vested in one year from |2 December 2016,
second 40% of the options granted will be vested in two years from 12 December
2016 and remaining 30% of the options granted will be vested in three years from
|2 December 2016. Upon the lapse of the vesting period, the share options are

exercisable until 12 December 2026.

The Group recognised share option expense of approximately HK$9,936,000
(2016: HK$11,699,000) during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted in year 2016 was estimated
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs

to the model used:

Expected volatility (%) 75.43-80.23
Dividend yield (%) -
Historical volatility (%) 75.72-8023
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.27-1.58
Exercise multiple 22-28

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past three
years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of

future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

R M

fERERTE (A)
D

(@) E30%EH Z ERERER2016F478
BRiT—FAHB - £ = H40%iE R
TG 1201 6F4 A8 H 5 ™ F A 57
B+ &R T 30%8E AR 15 70201 654 A
SHBA=—FANFE - NEBHLN
% BREE 2202654880197 1T
fFo

(b) E30%E M 2 BIRER 720165127
NEBH—FRNEB  mE = #40%
BERRIERS 20165 128 2B BT F
M5B - T B8R T 30%88 A% 4 15 1201 6
FRANBRAZFANEB -NEB
HRSC 8 - BE R AE R 2026 12 A 128
AA] FATfE

REBREZR017F1N2A3IBIEFE
1 52 B P 9 s #99,936,00078 7T (2016
£ 11,699,000 7T) ©

WICFR LA RS HEE 2 BRE 2 R
BEDNELE BEER BN K
SRR E R — R ARE AT - TR
HE ERA AR EARIE -

T8 AR 18 (%) 7543-80.23
% B e 2 (%) =
& 52 K% 18 (%) 75.72-80.23
2 2 B A 2K (%) 127-158
1T B8 22-28

BRENEHMEHNABE=FHNESE
FEAKEARDERBAIREHRNTT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of

fair value.

The 6,563,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of
6,562,900 ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of HK$5,014,055
(before issue expenses), as further detailed in note 26 to the financial statements.
(2016: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 50,001,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
50,001,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$250,005 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 50,001,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately

4.2% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

pages 80 and 81 of the financial statements.
(@)  Capital reserve
Capital reserve recorded during the years ended 31 December 2017 and

2016 represented the gain/loss on equity transactions with non-controlling

interests.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

28. RESERVES (Cont'd) 8 f#E(E)
(b)  Statutory and legal reserves b) ZEEREERE
Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required 7@%1‘@ AP BUERMER B
to allocate 10% of their net profit to the fund until such fund reaches 50% AR R EF 0% B =
of their registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon %i CBEEFMESEQTGEM
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses or BRES0%RBIEETEREE S
to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is EEHAERMERATER MU
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital. IR BEIEMA R EME
K EERESRERARER
Al Rl AR 2 259%7KF
Subsidiary incorporated in Macao is required to set aside a minimum of 25% BB RPIEDE R EI7715 - FORP
of the subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the balance AR S B0 BB 1 B 2R S E R R
of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the subsidiary's capital in BRMZFDVREAREREE B
accordance with the Macao Commercial Code #377. ERBEREIHENERARN
50%/3 Lk
29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 9. BEEARFERBEZNH D HEBMH
CONTROLLING INTERESTS BAFE
Details of one of the Group's subsidiary that have material non-controlling interests BEEAFEREGNASEE S —FH
are set out below: B ARREEEIMT
2017
Percentage of equity interests held by non-controlling interests:  JE{E iR iz FT 5 IR B 2
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp. It RAERERERMR 173 BERAR 58.67%
2017
HK$’000
THET
Profit for the period allocated to non-controlling interests: NEEIFERERH A ER
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp. It RAERRZERMMR N AR A 14,317
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests R RN IS BN Rtk
at the reporting date:
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp. I RAERRZERIMR N AR A 134,338
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 9. BEEAFERBEZNI D HEHMH
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Cont'd) BLNE(#)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the above TRIIR E 8 A R & B % & R
subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: Z FIRBERBEARETEMARREY
SHAT S5 -
MetaSpace
(Beijing) Air
Dome Corp.
ERAERE
B E R MR 7
BERAF
HK$'000
FET
During the period ended 3| December 2017 BEWI7FNAINALEFE
Revenue Wz 144,801
Cost of sales #HE AR (97,182)
Other income and gains HA A e i zs 1,840
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAY (6,449)
Administrative expenses TR FAX (11,035)
Other expenses HihFAx (2,740)
Financial costs BE AR (34)
Income tax expense PSR X (4,800)
Profit for the period HI A 4 7 24,401
Total comprehensive income for the period HA2EK=EHE 38,550
Current assets MBEE 266,603
Non-current assets FRBEE 25,129
Current liabilities mEaE (43210)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE =
Net cash flows from operating activities LTSRS REFE (5434)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGTBAARSRETFHE (123,058)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEHMARESREFE (3,389)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEBMRLFE (131,881)
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30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 18 April 2017, the Group through an indirectly 80% owned subsidiary, acquired
51.66% equity interest (with the Group's effective equity interest of 41.33%) of
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp., a company listed in the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations of PRC and principally engaged in providing various
solutions to air dome structures. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was
in the form of cash of RMB$140,000,000 (equivalent to HK$158,130,000) through
subscribing 35,000,000 new ordinary shares of MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp.
at the price of RMB4 per ordinary share.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest in MetaSpace

(Beijing) Air Dome Corp. at fair value.

30.

R ESE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont'd) 0. X6 (HE)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary acquired FAMKERB AR ZAIHAIEERE

during the year as at the date of acquisition are set out as follows: BERKBERER 2 AABEHINT :
Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

AW TR

ZAREHE

Notes HK$'000

B & FET

Property, plant and equipment M E MR 12 3,515
Intangible assets B EE 15 40978

Deferred tax assets ERERIBEE 19 701
Inventories FE 15,140
Amounts due from contract customer el & N R P RIA 4477
Trade receivables H 2 EWRIE 38,109
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENIE - Re REMERRIE 2,796
Cash and bank balances Re RRITER 166912
Trade payables B ENRIEA (13,004)
Other payables and accruals Hfth 1 3R R 5 & (5,892)
Current income tax BHMRET (371
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE (10,166)
Bank borrowings WITER (3,389)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEAEZARNEEREER 239,806
Non-controlling interests FFERER (110,814)
128,992

Goodwill on acquisition WiER 2 B8 14 29,138
Satisfied by cash AR ER 158,130
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30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at the date
of acquisition amounted to HK$38,109,000 and HK$1,376,000, respectively.
The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and other receivables were
HK$39,550,000 and HK$1,376,000, respectively, of which trade receivables of
HK$ 1,441,000 are expected to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$476,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs have been expensed and are included in other expenses in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

An analysis of cash flow in respect of the acquisitions is as follows:

30.

R M

EBREHt (&)

5 FEURRIE & B At U R IE A U
He) 2 A B 1E 5 Bl /438,109,000 7T &
1,376,000 7T ° B 5) & U 5K 18 J2 H th &
WRRIE R & #0488 5 Al /39,550,000
T K% 1,376 00078 7T - EEH B 5 & W IR
| 441,000 TC 1B BT A g [E]

RS BIH AT E IR M R 2R476,000/8 T
ZRPRAE - ZERHRABTI I
AR AR A EE KSR HM
FIS A ©

BRLRBESANRSRENNMOT

HK$'000

TAT

Cash consideration BeRE (158,130)

Cash and bank balances acquired BB R e RRITHER 166,912
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included AFARERBFEHREREL

in cash flows from investing activities RekReZEEBMRAEE 8,782
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FARERBAEREREL

in cash flows from operating activities WHEEIERZ 5K AR (476)

8,306

Since the acquisition, MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp. contributed
HK$138,829,000 to the Group's revenue and HK$ 16,412,000 to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue of the
Group and the profit of the Group for the year would have been HK$ 158,697,000
and HK$21,560,000, respectively.

RUEE IR - It RATIE RIE 2 R
BRDERABIREZE2017F 1283181
FEBAREE W T R138,829,0007% 7T
RAEA R ER164120008 T

HAHEFENEL FANAEEZNE
RAEE 7 % M5 Rl A 158,697,000/
7T % 21,560,0005% 7T ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. HEHREAT

2017

HK$'000

THERT

Net assets disposed of: BEHEBEFE:

Property, Plant and equipment ERY N 12,024
Investment properties REME 87,000
Goodwil BE 75
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIE B H A e UK TR 107,550
Inventories FE 90
Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 700

Cash and bank balances B RRITHER 8,76l
Trade payables B2 RENHIA (3,220)
Accruals and other payables JEETE R R E M ZIE (99,371)
Current income tax BHMREDR (53)
Financial lease BEMEE (774)
Bank borrowings RITIEH (3,904)
Non-controlling interests g i (6,622)
Total mEt 102,256
Exchange reserves B 3 (& 906
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR M= 40,736
143,898

Satisfied by: VARSI 75 SAE AT

Cash BE 143,898
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31

32.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

of subsidiaries is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal

3. HEWEAR (A

EBHENBARNRS RASSEY
MR A REA T

2017

HK$'000

TERT

Cash consideration ReRE 143,898

Less: cash and bank balances disposed of W EHE2HRE RIRITEH (8,761)

Cash consideration not received by year end FREMAWIRERE (22,161)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of ERLENBRRAINRERREEEYH

the disposal of subsidiaries MAHER 112,976

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had no major non-cash transactions (2016: Nil).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

R HEBRSREBRMT
@ BAERERS

FR AREBLETAEAIFE
&35 (20165 ) o

(b) BMETBHELNEEED

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings

Loans from

shareholders

S EATER RRER
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Uik TR TET
Balances at | January 2017 M2017F | B B R &5 = 175,156
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREL (545) (182,631)
Interest expense MERX 30 7475
Acquisition of a subsidiary el )= NG 30 (3,389) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR 31 3,904 -
Balance at 31 December 2017 201756 12831 By &4 = -
LREEXCEXERERA A
“E-tFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES B HREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant RBERR AEBUEEFREAIA
contingent liabilities. Bf
34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS M REHERS
(@)  Aslessor @ fEREEA
The Group leases its one investment property under an operating lease AEERBEEMELTHLERE
arrangement, with lease negotiated for a term of seven years. The terms —BREWR KEHESAAt
of the lease generally also require the tenant to pay security deposit and FHABER—RMERBEFX
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market REE RETARTREERMR
conditions. S HeEL A
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease R2017F 128318 A& BB E
receivables under the non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant falling B H TP RTS8 T RIS £
due as follows: SR T 5 BRI E a0 AR R&EHE
ERYGRIRRBEMT -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Within one year —FR 2,402 2,703
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZERFRN(BREEREMF) 17,242 4331
After five years AR 10,037 =
29,68 7,034
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd) M REHERHE)
(b)  Aslessee (b) ERFEMBEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease AEERELEMERHERE
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from THAEYE CEHEAN T
three to twenty years. ZEF5o
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease payments R2017F 127318 REERE
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: PABHEEHER T HE R
HR &) R R B (K 7H & SR A %R 4
T
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
Within one year _¢ A 8,678 6,670
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERLFAN(BREERMF) 37,504 35677
After five years HFR 54,782 73434
100,964 11578l
35. COMMITMENTS 3. AR
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 34(b) above, the BR £ BT sE34(b)FF it VA £ 7H B A2
Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period: O REBR RS BRI E REED
T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI AV EREE
Assets under construction EREE 93,545 6,620
Leasehold improvement HEMEEE 98 5,730
Acquisition of one subsidiary Yo B — R P B 2 A 76,548 =
170,191 12,350
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS % BEBMAIRZ
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial @ KBRIZUBHRREMEL T
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related parties RZIN REBRF A 5 7R
during the year: EITATR S
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i &E FTHRT FET
Gross rental income from BEMH ~ 2RE b IFBEER 2 HE WA LT - 832
Loans from shareholders REE XK - 175,000
Interest expense to shareholders,  [A] f% 5
a company owned as to 100% (—FhR—REE2EHEEZRR))
by a director YR ERY (i) 7,474 621
Commission fee paid to a placing B 1B & 12
agent, a company owned as to (—HE—%EF28%E 2 7))
100% by a director =g (ii) 1,000 3,500
0) The interest expenses were charged for the loans from shareholders at the 0) REZMEAET YRR 3

interest rates specified in the loan agreements (note 25).

(i)  On 24 July 2017, the Company and the placing agent entered into a placing
agreement with a placing commission amounting to HK$1,000,000.The placing
of shares was completed on 30 November 2017. The placing agent was held
by a director of the Company (note (26)).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group's loans from shareholders as at the end of the reporting

period are included in note 25 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

36.

R ESE

BHLRZ (&)
b) EEBEZHREERER:

RBERR AEERRER
FEB B TS R I S o

() AEEXEEBASHH:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Short-term employee benefits ySELSR N 2,166 1,670
Equity-settled share option expense Hﬂg EERRERX 2,675 3721
Pension — defined contribution plans Rike—EREREE 12 -
4,853 5391

Further details of the directors and the chief executive's emoluments are ﬁfﬂi?&f TBRAEMEZ

included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. @I AR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end EHEReMmTANRERR ZREES
of the reporting period are as follows: FEAT
Available-
for-sale
financial Loans and
assets receivables Total
A& ERR
THEE FE W kR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTHET TET
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 230,883 - 230,883
Trade receivables g 5 RN - 57,216 57,216
Amount due from contract customers FEYE F & K1 FUE - 65,684 65,684
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5T AT 518 ~ £ & K&
deposits and other receivables HitnE Bz e MEE = 30,253 30,253
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEM - 139,489 139,489
230,883 292,642 523,525
2017 2017
Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost PHEE-ZRER LT EZEHMAE
HK$'000
FTET
Trade payables EC L AN ¢ 32,246
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SARMENREREAERAz2REE 22417
54,663
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

2016

Financial assets — loans and receivables

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

37, SRIEER (&)
20165

CHEE-ENREWME

HK$'000

TET

Trade receivables B 5 WA 6,652
Financial assets included in prepayments, FFATERMTIE - RER

deposits and other receivables HihEWHRIBEZ SR B E 24247

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 306,398

337,297

Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost

THEE-BRBEAF B EHMER

HK$'000

FAET

Trade payables g5 ENRIE 8,202
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals FARMENREREAERACEREE 24,176
Loans from shareholders BRER 175,156
207,534

LB CEEEMARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

37.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd) 3. SMIAER(#&)
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, other AEEZeRMIAZREBRARE
than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair value, are as BE(EREEEAABEAEREER
follows: SN BB -
Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE DREE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET FTERT FET
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale investments L ERE 230,883 - 230,883 -
Financial assets included in FAEMRKIE RER
prepayments, deposits and other  ELfth EULFRIE 2
receivables, non-current portion & B & & + FEEIEIE 1,203 4969 1,203 3,360
232,086 4969 232,086 3,360
Financial liabilities cREeE
Financial liabilities included in ATAE AR R
other payables and accruals, EETERZ2MAR:
non-current portion FERNERER 7 600 774 600 719
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade and bills payables, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, loans from shareholders, the current portion financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the

short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and
the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit committee

twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of financial assets included in prepayment
deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk for the non-current
portion of other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2017 was assessed to be

insignificant.

The fair values of listed bonds investments are based on quoted market prices.

38.

R ESE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL B SRIAZAABERAAEBEER
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) (&)
Fair value hierarchy DREBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's TRITAEEERIAZ ARBE
financial instruments: =EN:
Assets measured at fair value: BAREBETEZEE:
As at 31 December 2017 2017812831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERUATERETAABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level ) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERME EATEE EXTTEER
HWEHE BARE BARE

(%158) (%28) (%83/8) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THERr TR TERT TERT
Available-for-sale investments A EHERE 108,166 122,717 - 230,883
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 3| R20175 12831 B %2016F12A318 -
December 2017 and 3| December 2016. AEBYEEMRAABEFEZER
BfE-
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level FR-FIE FERFELAOEE
|, Level 2 and Level 3 (2016: Nil). BARBEE (016F: &)
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2017

B |RME

38 ERMIAZAABERAAEBEER

(%)

AREERR (&)

wE

AREEZEE:

K017 12431 H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTERETAABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level ) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERME EATEE EXTTEER
WEHE BARE BARE
(%158) (%28) (%3E) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THERr TR TR TERT
Loan from shareholders REEK - - - -
As at 31 December 2016 K2016%F 12431 H

Fair value measurement using
ERUTEEETAREBEFNE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RiEBmE BRABR BEANAEE
oEE ] AR LIWN ¢
(FIE) (2[E) (E3E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAERT
Loans from shareholders BREREK - 175,156 - 175,156
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents,
available-for-sale financial assets. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks were primarily related to bank
balances mainly denominated in RMB.The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring

the movements in the foreign currency rates.

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group considers that the foreign exchange risk
arising from transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated in USD is not

significant.
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period

to a reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange rate (against HK$) on the

Group's loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets).

39.

R M

PR EREEBERBUR (&)

SNERE (F)

TREEHNARKER (LET)H
AR AR RS HAKBNREHR
GEAEE (EREREEZ A ANER
28 ERE DN -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in  (decrease) in loss
RMB rate before tax
ARBER BB AR
ER/(FER)  #Eh/ OBD)

% HK$'000
TET
2017 20174
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB WAETHAARERE 5 50
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB WETELAREHE (5) (50)
2016 20165
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT ARKEEE 5 204
I the HK$ strengthens against the RMB WATEAREAE (5) (204)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposit and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties, there
is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector. Except for
the other receivables of HK$12,000,000 due from three individuals, there are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group's trade and bills receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors and

industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising

from trade receivables are disclosed in note |8 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g, trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility through other interest-bearing loans including the loans from shareholders.
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

39.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

R M

PR EREEBERBUR (&)

RBEEmEE (&)
TRE|FZTAREERABERREHR
RAFBNE RS ERBIEHR 7
#r:

At 31 December 2017
R2017F 128318

Lessthan 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months I to 5 years Total
MEANL ML
RER  MEANR Z12EA B5E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR Tir Tin TR T#r
Trade and bills payables EIRNTERENRE - 04T 5969 3,805 32,246
Other payables H bR TIE - 19,476 481 600 20,557
- 41,948 6,450 4,405 52,803
At 31 December 2016
R20165F12A31H
lessthan3to  3toless than
On demand 3 months 12 months [ to 5 years Total
MEAME IEE
BRER  3fEAMR ENfA B5F st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T TR T
Trade and bills payables BHRATERENZR - 8,202 - - 8202
Other payables HfbERTE - 23402 - 774 24176
Loans from shareholders RERER 175,156 - - - 175,156
175,156 31,604 = 774 207534
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios

in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the

years ended 3| December 2017 and 31 December 201 6.

39.

PR EREEBERBR (&)

BEXEE

AEEEAEE I ERERABRAS
BRI ELERGRHIRRENRL K6
7 MRERBRE S RABREX
BAEE-

AEEERHERERE WHLERLR
KB EEN RSB EL AR
AEE R AERRRIRE ZRE [
BRRBBEARSBTHRG AR
FEEREE AEBHBRETINGDE
KIBTE -REZE20175F 128318 %2016
FNRANBILEETRAREREEARNEE
2 BoRs AR ELEE-

The Group monitors capital using the ratios of total liabilities to total assets. The AEBERERERNAEE L XE
ratios of total liabilities to total assets as at the end of the reporting periods were as TER -RBREMK BEERNEE
follows: EZLENT:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiERr TET
Total liabilities Bam 75,875 213817
Total assets REE 665818 452,446
Ratio r 1% 47%
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40.

41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 January 2018, MetaSpace Rui Di entered into a transfer agreement with
Mr. Luo Yun, Mr. Yu Mingshi and Mr. Tang Chuanlong (‘‘the original shareholders”),
Shareholders of Bodewei (Beijing) Sports Development Limited (“Bodewei
Beijing”). Pursuant to which MetaSpace Rui Di agreed to purchase and the original
shareholders agreed to sell 56% shareholding interest in Bodewei Beijing at the
consideration of RMB4,200,000 (equivalent to HK$5,043,000). The transfer of
shares was completed on 28 February 2017. Upon completion of the share transfer
agreement, The Group held a 56% equity interest (the Group's effective equity
interest of 18.52%) in Bodewei Beijing and Bodewei Beijing became a subsidiary of

the group.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year's

presentation.

4.

R M

BEHRER

201851 B 168  MetaSpace Rui Dif2 18
mE (R BEERARRR ([1H2
g DHREEELRE THA
FEREEELEE ([RRR])FIVE
ZfaE 0 Bt MetaSpace Rui DiE) E i
BERERFERAELEFESLE (R)2
S6%MRHE - B A AR 4,2000007T (18
E 15,043,000/ 7T ) © RIHEEE 2017
F2R288 T o AR 17 B 3R 1 5 ST K
% AEEREEEE (LR)56%RE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R E R M AL

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

4 ADFZPBRRE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BEREE 12 4
Investments in subsidiaries RWB AR ZKE 90,588 91,875
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 90,600 91,879
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries FE R Pl B A RIFRIA 359,896 115372
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables NI RE RHE WK 10,228 258
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEEM 43,497 207,487
Total current assets REEERE 413,621 323,117
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Due to subsidiaries L ENEIE ] 13,576 2,553
Other payables and accruals Hi R RIBRETER 3,160 2018
Loans from shareholders BREREK - 175,156
Total current liabilities mEAEER 16,736 179,727
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFRE 396,885 143,390
Net assets EEFE 487,485 235,269
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BARERARGES
Share capital R 6,484 584l
Reserves i 481,001 229428
Total equity R 487,485 235,269
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42.

43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd) 4 AABZHBMRRE (£)
Reserves at company level AREENREE
Company
LN
Share Share-based Accumulated
premium  payment reserve losses Total
Y4
RERK
ROEE FHREE Rt BB st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T TET TET TEL
Balances at | January 2016 201651 A | B &gk 271,775 = (189,045) 82,730
Issue of shares BB 155,028 - - 155,028
Release upon cancellation of ESBBRET HAD
vested share options - 11,699 - [1,699
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —FME AR - -
Loss for the year FRER - - (20029) (20,029)
Balance at 31 December 2016 2016512731 BEY &% 426,803 11,699 (209,074) 229428
Balances at | January 2017 R2017F 1 A1 B R &8 426,803 11,699 (209,074) 229428
Issue of shares BB 235642 - 235,642
Equity-settled share-based WG EE AR A
payment arrangements ERO MR 6,995 - 6,995
Profit for the year EREA 8936 8936
Balance at 31 December 2017 20176 12 A31 B #) &84 662,445 18,694 200,138 481,001

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair values of share options

granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy

for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will

either be transferred to the share premium account when the related options are

exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the related options expire or

be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 27 March 2018.

43.
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REVFRFHE

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE017F12A3NB LFE

Percentage
of interest

attributable to

Location Use Tenure the Group

ARBAEL
i B R# A EREEDH
The sports stadium in Tianji Racing Park, Premises for rental Medium term lease 100

No.3 Shentanggou North Road,
Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province.

WEE & KR4 28 1L BE35% HAY = FHHE
AEERBEERENNOEES
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